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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2015 (the “Year”).

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

A series of political incidents in Hong Kong and Mainland
China’s persistent economic slowdown hit the retailing of luxury
goods, thus affecting our business, which derived about half of
its revenue from the city and about 20% from the country during
the financial year under review. Other factors such as the
change in the demographics of Mainland Chinese tourist arrivals
(higher proportion of tourists with lower spending power) in
Hong Kong and increases in rents, labour cost and
administrative expenses also took their toll. Both Hong Kong and
Mainland China, which are our major markets, recorded
decreases in sales. As a result, the Group’s turnover decreased
8.4% to approximately HK$420.0 million for the Year, while
profit attributable to the shareholders declined by approximately
59.4% to HK$11.3 million.

Nevertheless, the Group’s multi-brand strategy of targeting
different segments of the high-end and upper-middle markets for
women'’s fashion apparel and accessories paid off as the gross
profit margin edged up to 83.2% in the Year from the 80.6% in
the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Previous Financial Year”).

We have been enhancing the image of our house brands to
consolidate our foothold and expand business in the existing
markets and, at the same time, fostering several European
fashion and accessories brands in those markets through
exclusive distribution to add impetus to our business

development.

Our two major house brands include the upmarket MOISELLE
which features elegant daywear and glamorous evening dresses
for special occasions and mademoiselle which embodies

contemporary and chic fashion design.
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Meanwhile, we have been introducing a distinctive fashion
brand with French design concepts like CERMAIN, and
launching accessories labels SEQUOIA and COCCINELLE

respectively from France and Italy into our target markets.

As to sales and distribution, we strengthened the stores with
good performance, opened new ones in prime locations of some
promising markets and closed some underperforming ones.
During the Year, we opened our first M Concept store in Macau
to reinforce our house brands, and opened a retail store for
GERMAIN in Hong Kong to press ahead with the introduction of
the French fashion brand. Meanwhile, we restructured our sales
network in Mainland China and stepped up efforts to promote
both our house brands and the European brands to tap the huge

promising market more effectively.

To enhance our brand equity and develop new markets, we have
been increasing efforts to enhance the design and development
of products and the training of talents as well as to improve the

retailing operations.

OUTLOOK

The Group remains optimistic about the prospects of the market
for women’s deluxe fashion apparel and accessories in the
coming financial year, and believe that Hong Kong’s retail
market may have bottomed and will recover following the one-
off incident “Occupy Central” campaign that took place in the
Year. Having considered the higher proportion of Mainland
Chinese tourist arrivals with lower spending power in Hong
Kong and Mainland China’s slowing economy and the Chinese
government’s move to advocate frugality, we are planning to
diversify the product range and mix and branch out into mid-
range products under new brands to broaden our customer base
and thus revenue source. In addition, we will continue to
expand business in our target markets through both the existing

and newly opened stores.
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In terms of product range and mix, we are developing men’s
wear under its main brand MOISELLE, and cooperating with the
French accessories brand SEQUOIA in designing, manufacturing,
wholesaling and retailing apparel products under that brand.
This is the first time for SEQUOIA to launch products other than
fashion accessories, and such an initiative will allow the Group
to demonstrate its versatility in executing its diverse-product and

multi-brand strategy.

As to sales and distribution, we will reinforce its operations in
Mainland China, the key market for the Group’s business
development, by restructuring and strengthening our sales
network there with the aim of increasing the market penetration
of both its house brands and the introduced European brands in
the country’s major cities and raising operational efficiency.
Meanwhile, our newly opened, 6,000-square-foot M Concept
store in Macau serves as a platform to showcase our unique and

delightful collections and services.

Dedicated to seizing market opportunities, enhancing brand
awareness and broadening the customer bases, we now
contemplate setting up an online shopping platform to capitalize
on the growing momentum of online shopping in Mainland
China and are now evaluating the potential of e-commerce
there. We believe various forms of social media can be an
effective means of enhancing sales and increasing our brand
recognition further. Our online shopping platform will be able to
set an example of how the Group can adopt an online-to-offline
marketing model to reduce overhead expenses and to get
inspiration to improve our services that target different

customers.
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The Group will also step up the marketing and promotional
efforts, especially those gearing towards the young people, to
raise the market’s awareness of its house brands and the
introduced European brands. Such initiatives will support the
launch of our new products or brands that target new groups of
customers. Meanwhile we have considered providing various
new services for its high-end customers such as giving out
exclusive shopping benefits and new value-added services to

them so as to enhance their shopping experience.

With all these measures under our diverse-product and multi-
brand strategy, we are well-positioned to scale the heights in the

luxury fashion industry.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

As a high-end fashion brand synonymous with elegance and
femininity, the Group operates such house brands as MOISELLE,
mademoiselle and GERMAIN, while engaging in exclusive
distributorship for international brands, including COCCINELLE
and SEQUOIA (which is operated by a joint venture of the
Group). Each of the brands, with its own distinctive customer
base, is being managed separately by the Group’s management
and designer teams with professionalism. Branding, marketing
and seasonal collections of each brand are created by various
designer teams to keep up with the latest fashion trends. With
these renowned domestic and international labels, the Group
currently has more than 90 retail stores and counters in Hong
Kong, first- and second-tier cities of China, Macau, Taiwan and

Singapore.

According to the information from the Hong Kong Tourism
Board, the total number of visits by Mainland Chinese tourists to
Hong Kong was approximately 47.2 million in 2014, up by
16.0% over last year. However, the demographics of the
Mainland Chinese tourists to Hong Kong changed during recent
years, with a higher proportion of visitors with weaker spending
power from the country’s second- and third-tier cities and with a
significant increase in those on the same-day return trips.
Notably, the “Occupy Central” campaign that took place in
Hong Kong in the fourth quarter of 2014 deterred Mainland
Chinese tourists from visiting Hong Kong, thus directly affecting
the city’s overall retail market. During the Year, the Group’s
business in Hong Kong recorded a 4.1% decrease in sales to
approximately HK$223,407,000 when compared to the Previous
Financial Year, and accounted for approximately 53.2% of the
Group’s turnover. The sales revenue were contributed by the
Group’s 11 MOISELLE, 7 mademoiselle, 4 COCCINELLE and 3
GERMAIN retail stores (2014: 12 MOISELLE, 9 mademoiselle,
one imaroon, one COCCINELLE and two GERMAIN retail stores).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To maintain the overall rental cost at a reasonable level and
improve the stores’ per-square meter sales performance in
Mainland China, the Group restructured its sales network there
by closing down 23 stores and opening 10 stores during the
Year. As at the end of the Year, the Group operated 33
MOISELLE, 4 mademoiselle and 3 GERMAIN (2014: 42
MOISELLE, 8 mademoiselle and 3 GERMAIN) retail stores in the
country, including 15 stores which were operated as
consignment counters in department stores and two stores which
were operated by franchisees. The 40 retail stores generated a
combined revenue of approximately HK$89,668,000, down by
approximately 20.2% when compared with that for the Previous
Financial Year. This was mainly due to the decreased spending
on luxury goods, which was in turn caused by the Chinese
government’s move to advocate frugality and the country’s
decelerating economic growth. To grasp the emerging
opportunities in e-commerce, the Group has been discussing
possible cooperation with a number of online shopping platform
operators in Mainland China, aiming to establish an online-to-
offline business model and to further mitigate the pressure that

rising rents put on the Group.

To provide better shopping experience and quality service for its
valued customers, the Group opened its first concept store, M
Concept, in Sands Cotai Central, Macau with a floor space of
approximately 6,000 square feet in June 2014. In addition, the
Group was operating two MOISELLE, one mademoiselle and one
COCCINELLE retail stores in the city during the Year. As at 31
March 2015, the 5 retail stores in Macau generated a combined
revenue of approximately HK$53,596,000, which was down by
approximately 6.5% when compared with that for the Previous
Financial Year. As more five-star hotels, large shopping centers
and casinos are opened in Macau, the management is confident
of consistent growth in the market for high-end clothing and

accessories.
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The Group operated 13 MOISELLE and 8 mademoiselle (2014: 15
MOISELLE and 6 mademoiselle) stores in Taiwan as at 31 March
2015. The retail stores in Taiwan generated a combined revenue
of approximately HK$43,436,000, accounting for approximately
10.3% of the Group's total revenue for the Year. In order to
satisfy the demand for mid-range clothing and accessories,
especially those for the young people, the Group will consider
introducing new fashion and accessories labels into Taiwan’s

market.

The Group’s business in Singapore made encouraging progress
during the Year. One more MOISELLE store and one more
GERMAIN store were opened in Paragon, Singapore, bringing
the total number of retail stores in the country to four, including
two MOISELLE and two GERMAIN (2014: one MOISELLE and one
CERMAIN) retail stores. The Group’s sales there surged by
46.1% to approximately HK$9,858,000 for the Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover decreased by approximately 8.4% to
approximately HK$419,965,000 (2014: HK$458,677,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2015 as compared with 2014. Due to
the deterioration in performance of Mainland China market, the
revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong decreased by
approximately 12.9% to approximately HK$196,558,000 (2014:
HK$225,627,000) during the Year as a result. The segment
turnover ratio had arrived at approximately 46.8% which was
two percentage points lower as compared to the Previous

Financial Year.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased as well
by approximately 4.1% to approximately HK$223,407,000
(2014: HK$233,050,000) which was mainly due to the

decreased sales in the second half of the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 83.2%, as compared to 80.6% of the previous
year. The gross profit margin increased but remained in the
normal range of gross margin of the Group during previous
years. Operating expenses for the year ended 31 March 2015
totaled approximately HK$350,582,000, compared to
approximately HK$342,726,000 for 2014, increased by
approximately 2.3%. The decrease in turnover in addition to the
increase in operating expenses, mainly staff costs and rental
expenses, had resulted in the significant decrease in operating
margin to 1.6% (2014: 7.2%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately
HK$11,331,000 (2014: HK$27,923,000), decreased by
approximately HK$16,592,000, 59.4%. The decrease was in line

with the decrease in operating margin.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the Year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the Year, the
Group's aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$184 million (2014: HK$250 million). As at 31
March 2015, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$41 million (2014: HK$41
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$2
million (2014: HK$2 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2015, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 5.2 times (2014: 5.7 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2014:

zero).
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$2 million (2014: HK$2 million).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group employed 731 (2014: 821)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical

insurance cover and training programmes.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ Bt 4 [ 5 it 2+ 5] Annual Report 2015 4F B 4E $it

HITES

BRERANSEE > 568 RNARAZEERAEBEHEAR
MAZ— 2EEBEXAEECERERIE - AF
BRFAIERTSERE  RRAKREERESETET
E¥BEA=1T/\FHEBEELH - REEN=_ZZ
—F+-AEEBRIXLEERERETFIER
#oWREF+_RARE-_ZZT—FDHLEERR
ERWERCRIEER -FEBHAEFHRER
CERRE _TTAFHRAGHEAR -RELERESE
ZERBHEASEEEFELEEE o I H
RN -PRERBTEEETERAR=
ZENFRIRIBE - RATMNANBEEH SR
T o WRKIETASEBETRTEEEGRSES
BENEEEZE RALDNEREEIERGE

LRIREXRTHEPMAMK L 2HERER/NER
B -WIERBEAABERER RIOBRLBLL
ZEXR - BREBELERBRBELEZXR  RBRE
BREZIRK -

Y S R s YN =YL Pl

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 56, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 38
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr.
Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He is currently a
member of the Design-Business Collaboration Scheme
Assessment Panel under Create Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a
member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and serves
on the expert group on fashion industry under the working group
on manufacturing industries, innovative technology, and cultural
and creative industries of the Economic Development
Commission. He is the vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber
of Commerce. He is the husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 56, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 38 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. She is a member of, and was a co-chair of the Fund
Raising Committee (2010-2012) of, Zonta Club of New
Territories, an honorary president of Hong Kong Federation of
Women, a co-chairman of HK Tianjin Women'’s Federation, a
member of HKFW Women Entrepreneurs Committee and of
Hong Kong Woman Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association.
Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and
is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei. Ms.
Tsui is the sister of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 64, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui has
over 38 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the

Company.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 37, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is a member of the Garment Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He is the
son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 27
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 26 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as China-
appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also appointed as
notary public in December 2009. She is a member of the Board

of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 54, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently a director of Focus Great China Investment Limited. He
has 24 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 61, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has
over 30 years’ experience in management consulting and
systems implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in

commerce from Queen’s University in Canada.
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Senior Management

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 45, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 24 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of the United Kingdom and a holder of the

practitioner’s endorsement of HKICS.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 27, is the creative director of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design department. In addition, he is
also responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
Arts London. He is a member of the General Donations/Special
Events Organising Committee under the Campaign Committee of
The Community Chest of Hong Kong and of Hong Kong CPPCC
Youth Association. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of
Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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The Company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7 as
below, the Company has complied with the code provisions
listed in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

Code Provisions A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr.
Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the Company. The Company will however keep this

matter under review.

Code Provisions A.6.7

Code Provisions A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that the
independent non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of the Company. Due to prior business engagements
external to the Company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 14
August 2014.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun, and three are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
paragraph A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which states
that the Chairman should hold meeting with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors of the Company

present. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

i R &
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 3/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5

During the year ended 31 March 2015, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, was held. The attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

H FE AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 11
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1/1
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 1/1
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 171
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 0/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 1/1

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 1/1
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EES0EHEAEECEBER  YIRKEERE The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
B R & ERE - business strategies for the Group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

ESEHECHAEIINEERSREBALR The relationship among members of the board is separately
NHEE - disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.
=R DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
EREFCAAQAARHREBEZZI2LHE - The directors have provided records of the training they received
BRESREZFIZHZ2FBHINT ¢ to the Company. The details of training records provided of each

director are set out as follows:

BE=x FrEZEIRE S EHRAE FRFERE
Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent
BRI FLE Strategic Thinking & Change: EREEEY 3B

Case Analysis
—Z-hF=A=+H
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Strategic Thinking & Change: The Hong Kong 3 hours
Case Analysis Institute of Directors
20 March 2015

®RIOBLL Strategic Thinking & Change: EREREY 3B
Case Analysis
—Z-hF=A=+H
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Strategic Thinking & Change: The Hong Kong 3 hours
Shirley Case Analysis Institute of Directors

20 March 2015

BRERLE New Regulatory Regime for EREHHAE 1/ B
Stored Value Facilities and

Retail Payment Systems in

Hong Kong
—E-A¥=A=1t-H
Mr. Chui Hing Yee New Regulatory Regime for Hong Kong 1 hour
Stored Value Facilities and Institute of Certified
Retail Payment Systems in Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2015
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B=x

Director

RE®KTE

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

REBEEE

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

SEELZTERENEE-E—FAF=A=1+—H
LFEERITEBEMEMRERFMBTEERXERRE

2B -

FUTEEZEH
BYFHTES2ENAPME  LARBARQT
ZHEBERMAIRESE -

FrgEsgdl R B4

Training received and date

Challenges in Upholding
the Integrity of Markets
—Z-h¥=RAA

Challenges in Upholding
the Integrity of Markets
5 March 2015

Clear and Concise —
Help in Preparing Business
Reviews for Annual Reports
—E-HF=RIH
Clear and Concise —
Help in Preparing Business
Reviews for Annual Reports
5 March 2015

KPMG INED Forum
—E-NEXRATAAR
—E-mEt+A+=H

KPMG INED Forum
16 June 2014 &

13 October 2014

EIRHE

Training provider

EBESRRESS

Hong Kong
Securities &

Investment Institute

EREEZE

The Hong Kong

Institute of Directors

ESRE =B

KPMG

Fir 75 B

Time spent

1/ B

1 hour

2/NBE

2 hours

4N B

4 hours

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian has provided training record on her

fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional

development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a

term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the Company.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2015 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b.  Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c. Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.
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The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the progress on achieving the

objectives.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the Company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

i FE R 8
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 2/2

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, determined the
discretionary bonuses of the executive directors and approved

the terms of non-executive directors” appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.
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The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the Company’s

matters.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

AH
HK$ Number of person
Nil = 1,000,000 1
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

7 and 8 to the financial statements respectively.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to external auditors is

analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
B IR Audit services 1,998,000
R Non-audit services 218,000
2,216,000

EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

RABMKBLETRAFEI2IRKLEREZES B
AERRERAEE M BERRBERAIMES -
EREEEHARRAZUBIFAITESER 2
MBREELL (EF)  REREEREREL
T WEESSER-

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's
financial reporting process and internal controls. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
of the Company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr.
Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and

reports to the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

HE 8
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
Group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the Group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the
nature and extent of the risks to which the Group is exposed.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in

relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the Group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and
evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the directors were
dedicated to implement various initiatives to further enhance the
existing internal control system alongside with the ongoing

business development of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The Company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the Group
regarding their responsibilities on the financial statements is set

out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 36 and 37.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist by the Company.
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If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the Company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong

Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the Company.

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the Company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
Company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the

proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the
relevant committee of the Company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.
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Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman Islands and
has its registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F, Kodak House 2, 39
Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
Group during the financial year is set out in note 3(b) to the

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the

Group’s total turnover.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:

Percentage of the Group’s
purchases total
REBRBE

BRFEDL

18%

Five largest suppliers in aggregate 34%
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At no time during the year have the director, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the best knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 38 to 148.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
151 and 152.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$11,331,000 (2014: HK$27,923,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of Hong Kong 4 cents per share (2014:
Hong Kong 4 cents per share) was paid on 15 January 2015. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
Hong Kong 4 cents per share (2014: Hong Kong 8 cents per
share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
17 September 2015.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$139,000 (2014: HK$270,000).

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in note 12 to the

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in note 23(c) to the financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014).

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with

such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF.
The subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension

payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Yum Kit, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian and Mr. Chu Chun
Kit, Sidney will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of

association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

RSN
Approximate ERtE

percentage of interests Nature of interest

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

®IGELZ L
Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley

190,872,000

2,100,000

2,100,000

190,872,000

2,100,000

2,100,000

66.29% DR RIK
Corporate/Family

0.73% EYi
Family

0.73% BA
Personal

(Bt (1)K (2)

(Notes (1) and (2))

66.29% D8 Kk
Corporate/Family

0.73% EYi3
Family

0.73% {EPN
Personal
(KraE(1)K2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

EEBNEIH
Approximate

EEME

percentage of interests Nature of interest

BREBEE 500,000
Mr. Chui Hing Yee
RERTE 900,000
Mr. Chan Sze Chun
EHELZ L 30,000

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

(1) 190,000,000/ 7% % R 10 J B Super Result
Consultants Limited ([ Super Result]) 8 o
Super ResultZ RATIEBRIASLE (TBREED -
#oEzt (Rt ) REBEBEEEDHERE
B46.7% ~ 46.7%56.6% c REE R thz L H it
FWR AR Super ResultfTiFEH 2190,000,0008%
ROPEEARES -

872,000 &% 5 B 10 JA FANew First Investments
Limited ([ New First]) 378 o New FirstZ B 23
HREERBLZLTDHNERER0% BREER
BRLZTEARESHER B RNew FirstfTiEH 2
872,000 M HEE L FES ©

2) BERREERBZEIBRE RELTERASE
BREEZROP REEBREAEERGES
2 TR8R

0.17% & A
Personal
0.31% & A
Personal
0.01% & A
Personal

Notes:

(M

190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by
Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each
of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested in
the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2015 was the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

BEARGEHERT

ligried ¥ SN=lid

HRROEH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

MtaE : Super Resulte RATIHRBR LA - L T RHBE
BREDBIEREE46.7% * 46.7%K6.6% °

BRERER EX[ESREBRTHRAERES 28
#m | —EHEARRESERETETHRAS 2 EHI
BERADARBEIZRPEMROAEIBHMZBRER
BEzEifpAas REF-HEF=A=+t—0"
WEAMATREADTDROIEERD P HEEER
KA e

BEERaNZESR

RERIANFEEMERE  BARF  HERA
A -MEARARERMBARES—F AT ZE
AEESNH  NARESHEEFTMEAES -

190,000,000 65.99% (M1iL) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the Company whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in
securities” above, no person was recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest
or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
27(a) to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the law in the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the Company.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 38 to 148,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2015, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2015 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-_Z—AF=A=1+—HB1FE (WLBE%5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EB-EHF —Z—mE
2015 2014
B £ Fr Fr
Note $/000 $000
EXER Turnover 3 419,965 458,677
SHE R A Cost of sales (70,422) (88,843)
ER Gross profit 349,543 369,834
HAtb g A Other revenue 4 8,881 6,915
H At &5 15 75 48 Other net loss 4 (1,200) (969)
HERDHRA Selling and distribution costs (273,822) (268,517)
THRAMEER Administrative and other operating expenses (76,760) (74,209)
RERA Profit from operations 6,642 33,054
BE R AN Finance costs 5(a) 1) -
REME 2 HERZE Valuation gains on investment properties 12 11,432 1,244
FEBRLBREEY Valuation losses on land and buildings
ZIHEEE held for own use 12 (1,750) -
EEBE N 2E#R Share of loss of associate 14 (188) (219)
EiEEE QT2 EA, (BEB) Share of profit/(loss) of joint venture 15 505 (1,019)
RR%E A% F Profit before taxation 5 16,640 33,060
s Income tax 6(a) (5,309) (5,137)
FRRF Profit for the year 11,331 27,923
TN LR : Attributable to:
RATE SRR Equity shareholders of the company 11,331 27,923
BREF Earnings per share 11
X Basic $ 0.04 $0.10
B Diluted $ 0.04 $0.10
BA7EV48EZMEB AT HHRK 22— - HEA The notes on pages 47 to 148 form part of these financial
RN T REZREELERER 2 A IREZEBEEHL statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
HEE23(b) o of the company attributable to the profit for the year are set out

in note 23(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-Z—RF=A=+—HIL4E (LLB%5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i —F-IF
2015 2014
= Fr Fr
Note $/000 $000
FRRF Profit for the year 11,331 27,923
FRHAMEE K Other comprehensive income
(MBrFiE) for the year (after tax) 10
RAERIEEET 7 HE Items that may be reclassified
FEmzEE subsequently to profit or loss:
BERBIRINE AR Exchange differences on translation of
BB HRRZEREZH financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong (1,395) 12,583
REBKTEEHTH Items that will not be reclassified to
FRm2HE profit or loss:
FIEERLHRESEY Surplus on revaluation of land and
ZEMMBELR buildings held for own use 24,905 18,637
23,510 31,220
FREEKSAE Total comprehensive income
for the year 34,841 59,143
T ARG : Attributable to:
RRAEBERR Equity shareholders of the company 34,841 59,143
FA7TEV48E 2 MEBAG B BER 2 —& D ° The notes on pages 47 to 148 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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MWoZ—RF=A=+—H (LAB%75IR) At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-EF =ik
2015 2014
Mt Tr Fr R P
Note $/000 $’000 $7000 $7000
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
- REME — Investment properties 12 126,509 63,263
- HitEE&EE — Other fixed assets 12 395,567 402,860
522,076 466,123
REE QR Z R Interest in an associate 14 965 1,053
REERR 2 EHE Interest in a joint venture 15 - -
HthEE Other assets 16 17,923 20,832
BREFRESHEE Deferred tax assets 22(b) 8,375 9,238
549,339 497,246
REBEE Current assets
78 Inventories 17 70,479 58,522
FEWERF R UL Trade and other receivables 18 51,149 49,075
AR EHIE Tax recoverable 22(a) 4,230 182
R RBITEX Cash and bank deposits 19(a) 183,892 250,141
309,750 357,920
mEAE Current liabilities
EAERAREMEMNT Trade and other payables 20 59,387 59,092
FEfFFi 1B Tax payable 22(a) 758 3,489
60,145 62,581
RBEERE Net current assets 249,605 295,339
BEERARBAMBAE  Total assets less current liabilities 798,944 792,585
FREESF Non-current liabilities
ELEFfEHREE Deferred tax liabilities 22(b) 69,867 63,797
BEEFE NET ASSETS 729,077 728,788
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RoZ—RE=F=+—08 (LABEHIR) At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-EF ik
2015 2014
oY = Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note $/000 $/000 $000 $000
EXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
&N Share capital 23(c) 2,880 2,880
ERe] Reserves 726,197 725,908
BB REDR TOTAL EQUITY 729,077 728,788
ESEN-E-AFAAS TN BRELFFAIEE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 June 2015.
)
)
) EZS Directors
BRERAR RISEE )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
FATEV48E 2 MEBAT B HRKR 2 —F D o The notes on pages 47 to 148 form part of these financial

statements.
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HE AR

Balance Sheet

MWoZ—RF=A=+—H (LAB%75IR) At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-EF =ik
2015 2014

Mt = Fr T Tr T

Note $’000 $000 $’000 $/000
FREBEE Non-current assets
RIE A B 2 & Interest in subsidiaries 13 266,208 270,834
RBEE Current assets
H fth FE Wt 7R Other receivables 18 34,909 33,109
ReRIBITEX Cash and bank deposits 19(a) 896 275

35,805 33,384

REEE Current liabilities
Hit AR Other payables 20 1,646 2,116
REEEFE Net current assets 34,159 31,268
EEFE NET ASSETS 300,367 302,102
EXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23(a)
R AR Share capital 2,880 2,880
& Reserves 297,487 299,222
AR R TOTAL EQUITY 300,367 302,102

BRERAR
Chan Yum Kit

EZSER-Z-RFANASTABBRELFFAISE -

Fa7ER148E 2 MEBAMBHRKR 2 —8D -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 June 2015.

RIDGE
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

—_ — — — —

EZE Directors

The notes on pages 47 to 148 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—RF=A=+—HIL4E (LLB%5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18R

BEN

EE  ERRE
BHOR  Landand LT
Rk BRGEE HbRE EARE  Sattory  bulding REER Ei
Share Share Other  Exchange reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve funds ~ reserve  profits Equity

it i T tn T i T tn i
Note  §'000 000  §000  §'000 000  §'000  §'000 000

RZB-ZEMA-AZ&H  Balanceasat 1 April 2013 2880 65,327 121 33,269 9336 260,923 329461 701317
Z2-ZE/-pE2 Changes in equity for 2013/14:
Bi49:

EmiEH Profit for the year - - - - - - w9 79
A2 Ak Other comprehensive income 10 = = - 12,583 - 18,637 - 31,20
LANRER Total comprehensive income = = - 12583 - 18637 27923 59,143
FERREZRE Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 23(b)ii) - - - - - - (20155 (20,155
REEBERZRE Dividend declared in respect

of the current year 23(b)i) = - = = = - (11517 (11,517
R-Z-ME=H Balance at 31 March 2014

Zt-H2&t 45,852 279560 325712 728,788
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z-—AF=A=1+—HILFE (LLEEHIR) For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18R

BEN

EE  ERRE
BH#LNE  landand LT
Rk BGEE HfpRE EARE  Sawtory  buldng REER Ei
Share Share Other  Exchange reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds ~ reserve  profits Equity

We f1 fR fx A fR 0 FR FR TR
Note §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000

RZE-MEMB-B2&8 Balance as at 1 April 2014 2,680 65,327 121 45,852 9336 279,560 325712 728,788
ZE-RE/-152 Changes in equity for 2014/15:
B&%29:
ERai Profit for the year - - - - - -3 1133
B2 ERE Other comprehensive income 10 - - - (13%) - 24,905 - 13510
*ENEEE Total comprehensive income = = = (1395) - 24905 11,331 34,841
ZFEREZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 23 (b)) - - - - - - (23,035 (23,035
REEEERZKS Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)i) - - - - - - (m517) (11,517
R=B-1%=A Balance at 31 March 2015
St-RekR 2880 65327 121 44457 9336 304465 302491 729,077
BATE 148 B 2B AGEREZ —H 5 The notes on pages 47 to 148 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z—RF=A=+—HIL4E (LLB%5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—Z2-IF —F-mE
2015 2014
oY T Fr Fr Fr
Note $/000 $/000 $7000 $000
RETER Operating activities
REXEBEEZHE  Cash generated from operations 19(h) 23,123 72,678
2B Tax paid
—ENEBNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (9,546) (6,762)
—-BBREMEH — Income tax outside
FRiGH Hong Kong paid (1,141) (3,244)
RETBREZ Net cash generated from
ReFH operating activities 12,436 62,672
REED Investing activities
FHREE=@EA#% Decrease in deposits with banks
B2 8RAT with maturity more than three
FRED months when placed 2,503 -
BABETEEMNR Payment for purchase of fixed
assets (46,223) (15,176)
HEBEEEMBIIE Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 8 223
EWF 2 Interest received 3,096 3,877
REZBA Net cash used in investing
ZREFE activities (40,616) (11,076)
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HAEBERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEZZT—RAF=A=+—HIEFE (LLEKFIR) For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-EF =ik
2015 2014
oY 5 T Fr T T
Note $’000 $/000 $000 $000
MEEH Financing activities
EFFE Interest paid (1 -
2fNRE Dividends paid (34,552) (31,672)
MEFTBRAZ Net cash used in financing
REFE activities (34,553) (31,672)
BERBEEEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash
(RD) /#EFEE and cash equivalents (62,733) 19,924
REDZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REZEY at beginning of the year 247,438 225,259
EXGHoXE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (813) 2,255
RERZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REZEEY at end of the year 19(a) 183,892 247,438
FA7TEVA8E 2 MEBARYBHRR 2 —& D ° The notes on pages 47 to 148 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period, as permitted by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”), continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the group is

set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015 comprise the company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and

the group’s interest in an associate and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

- other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a

finance lease (see notes 1(g) and 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the

group and the company:

- Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS

27, Investment entities

- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities

—  Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount

disclosures for non-financial assets

-  Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives

and continuation of hedge accounting

—  HK(FRIC) 21, Levies
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(c)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new

or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,

Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as
defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities
are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss. These amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as the group

does not qualify to be an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as they are

consistent with the policies already adopted by the
group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures
required for an impaired asset or cash-generating unit
whose recoverable amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The adoption of these amendments
does not have any material impact on these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets
certain criteria. The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as the group has

not novated any of its derivatives.

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a
liability to pay a levy imposed by a government
should be recognised. The amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as the
guidance is consistent with the group’s existing

accounting policies.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The
group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEGBEE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) HEREE) (d) Subsidiaries (continued)
KRR EEEBERATRMEDQ AR In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
5 RRARBEEMARBESRE (BT subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
HOMEPN- note 1(i)).
() BHEARRSE QT (e) Associates and joint ventures
BEQNRADE -—RAEBHARAHE An associate is an entity in which the group or
EE (BHESENBEREERR 26 E) company has significant influence, but not control or
BEREE D (BFERRAREHNEE joint control, over its management, including
B)2AF e participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

BENRANENLEZRY  AAKESA A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the group
AFHEEMEELAEAE D ZHZE or company and other parties contractually agree to
ZHZEHE  YERZERFZ2EEF share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
= the net assets of the arrangement.
BENRAHEERRAIZRERKRERE An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
RESHBHRPIIR - REEEE R accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
BERUMA AN - I FHBEFIRE KA under the equity method. Under the equity method,
MAEERNKE B BERIRE DT the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
REBEENAARBE(UR) - HERBAE for any excess of the group’s share of the acquisition-
Bt HRECEFEERERBENE date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
BREBREZEMBEBEELRAE over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
(REFEETG) - EARUWE B 2Bl R investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
AN~ AREBEFGHRELERBBEE 2K in the group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
MEFEEEREMEFHEGFESER any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
FaBERPER  mMARERGRKRE notes 1(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
EERBBRBHEEME2EKE - A group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
REEE2EKERPER - of the investees and any impairment losses for the year

are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the group’s
interest is reduced to Nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with
the group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the group’s net investment in the associate or

the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its associates and
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in joint venture or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, when the group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial

asset.

In the company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(g

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in

note 1(q)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
1(h).

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use classified as being held
under finance lease and buildings thereon (see note
1(h)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Other fixed assets (continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not

reclassified to profit or loss.
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Other fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,

being 50 years from the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of
5 years and the

period of the lease

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

- Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment

-  Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by the group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(f));
and

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(f)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FESEEEAE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
iy EBERE (i) Impairment of assets
(i) BAEZEFKRERAMEKNZHE (i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables
BRALBEE A AR ZBRAE S Investments in equity securities and other current
RE & H AR B K% IE 7 B B IR and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
BEZEEER UREREER or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
BzRERE REZZEHEEE sheet date to determine whether there is
BASBEEREUT -—BEHZEE objective evidence of impairment. Objective
BEBEZAEEHE evidence of impairment includes observable data

that comes to the attention of the group about

one or more of the following loss events:

- EBABTERUMBEEEH ; - significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- EREY fluiExREE — a breach of contract, such as a default or
BREHARERIE delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- BBRATRKRESETHMS — it becoming probable that the debtor will
BEME enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- RE -mH KBS EERE - significant changes in the technological,
BEAZHEMHBEBAET market, economic or legal environment that
FEE ;& have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- —HEERTEREZAAREH - a significant or prolonged decline in fair
BABEIRFHREZER value of an investment in an equity

HER S o instrument below its cost.
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEREEEEE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() EBEEREGE) (i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) RAZFHFRERAMENRSZHE (i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
(#) other receivables (continued)

MERMNEEREFT E2EE
HEBEILET 5 AR

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:
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AIMER AR ERGS MR
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Pt E (AR BHRIE
W) MR BB ERE - 9
RERTME EHEEMNRRK
REREBEDREBERFLEE
ARSI EREBEENBE
BB BN — O FERRE o

For investments in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(e)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note
1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with note 1(i)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@i

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the balance sheet date to identify
indications that fixed assets (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts) and investments in
associate and joint venture in the company’s
balance sheet may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or

may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposals
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@i

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(i)(i) and

(if)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

0]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

(ii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the balance
sheet date unless the property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEGEE(E) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) FREHL (&) (0) Income tax (continued)
RSB MELEFMSHREMRRAESH Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
E0BR  YAFFEE - MEARQE movements therein, are presented separately from
FAKEEEETHEEASRHAERE each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
EREABAEHAE  XEFSUTH offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
TRRERT - BIZAHBIE & &= AT K 8 assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the company or
FHBIREE  RELEREHEER K the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
SHIELEFIBSHEME : current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- BAHAEHEENEEMS & — in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
RABAEEERFHEEEL company or the group intends either to settle on
B oHEBERZEEMNEEZE a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
& =R liability simultaneously; or
- METEFMEHREENEEGEMS & -~ in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
LEEMEBEXEER—HBHE they relate to income taxes levied by the same
MUTHA—BBRNFAEBER : taxation authority on either:
- BE-EXRHER R - the same taxable entity; or
- TEAMNERHEB BLEE - different taxable entities, which, in each
=T8I R R S EEF A REEE future period in which significant amounts
EMSHEBEEEEER A of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
IEIEFT 15 B E B T BAUR [ 49 5 expected to be settled or recovered, intend
B RFEEEZR AR to realise the current tax assets and settle the
SHEENBEELAHMERE current tax liabilities on a net basis or
& REKSRZEEMEE realise and settle simultaneously.

ZEE-



S 2 e o B ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEREEEEE)
(p) FBHZHBER ERERIBEE

(i) FFEH 2B BIER
MBERDERBTA(DERA)
RERZEAN(HEAD AEERS
BARERBERETANERRRE
HEANRMRINEBL MEAFE

AXNBEERENELN -

i ANEEE LT BER ZERD
ARENTERBEABRAR EA
FEAS SRR BVIRIE A » B 3% B 3§
ERNBHEKNARENSRHIA
PR QA FEBR S A E
R(MAESZEEN) MEE @ K
SREEFEHMT  BERUBK
ATEFE 1R AR B B IR IR A R 2
B TE 4R I R B W] BE LR Y
TR RIELL B (W2 E BRI T SE 1k
FF) o £ 2 3% H 2B AR B WCER SR AT WY
HREN - 2R AR B E AR
EENAKBEBEM TER - 08
B IR EEA RS - RS
BREMEZEWRAR  BIBERER
A ERRR X

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ B2 4 M A F! 2 5] Annual Report 2015 44t

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss

on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the amount

receivable can be measured reliably.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

company’s functional and presentation currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(if)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation outside
Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

S 2t o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which

they are incurred.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the group;

(ii) has significant influence over the group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the group’s

parent.

(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Q)

(u)

Related parties (continued)
(2)  An entity is related to the group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

group or an entity related to the group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 12(c) and 24 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of

properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Impairment of fixed assets

The group assesses annually whether fixed assets have
any indication of impairment in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the assets would be
determined by reference to value in use or fair value
less cost of disposals. Value in use is determined using
the discounted cash flow method. Due to inherent risk
associated with estimations in the timing and
magnitude of the future cash flows and fair value less
cost of disposals, the estimated recoverable amount of
the assets may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by the

accuracy of the estimations.

Impairment of trade debtors

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
trade debtors may not be recoverable, the assets may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of trade
debtors are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of
trade debtors is the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of
similar assets. The group uses all available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable

approximation of recoverable amount.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Write-down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write-
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market trends,
actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of this

estimation.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(e)

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax and
other implications of transactions and, provisions are
set up accordingly. The treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in, including interpretation of, tax and other
legislation. Where the final outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
provisions in the year in which such determination is

made.

3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

(b)

Turnover
The principal activities of the group are the design,
manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel

and accessories.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.

Segment reporting

The group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
group has presented the following two reportable
segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

—  The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of

house brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China
and sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation of assets attributable
to those segments. However, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of

assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment profit is
profit from operations. Income tax is not

allocated to reportable segments.

Segment assets and liabilities of the group are not
reported to the group’s most senior executive
management regularly. As a result, reportable
segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in these financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the group’s accounting

policies described in note 1.
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3. EXERIBRE (A) 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) DS (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) ZEfFE (&) (i)  Segment results (continued)
BE-Z-AFR-F-—NF=A Information regarding the group’s reportable
ZS+-HLEFE FHOAEER segments as provided to the group’s most senior
BITHEEASRMUIEERR executive management for the purposes of
FEIBRBE2AEBETE2HRD resource allocation and assessment of segment
H2ERRIMT : performance for the years ended 31 March 2015

and 2014 is set out below:

S BESS #it
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total

~2-1F “%-QF —2-IF “B-IF —%-1f “B-IF
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

T T T T T T
§000  §'000  §000  §000  $000  §000

PREFUE Revenue from external customers 223,407 233,050 196558 225627 419965 458,677
2 BELE Inter-segment revenue 45,114 71,234 50,690 52,312 95,804 123,546
ETERDHUE Reportable segment revenue 268,521 304284 247248 277,939 515769 582,223
BT2EAPER/ (BB Reportable segment profit/ loss) 21972 32,002 (3,011)  (4,894) (1,039 27,108
RITERLFERA Interest income from bank deposits 281 122 3,274 3,460 3,555 3,582
BERK Finance costs (1) £ - - (1) -
ERITE Depreciation for the year (10,727)  (11962)  (13422)  (14733)  (24,149) (26,695
EEEEZRERR Impairment losses on fixed assets - - G641)  (1,127) G641 (1,127)
RS2 HE Reversal of impairment losses/

FiERe/ (AEFR) (impairment losses) on trade

debtors




Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ B2 4 M A F! 2 5] Annual Report 2015 44t

S 2 e o B ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. BXBERIBHRE (&) 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)y DE®E (H) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) EBTFE2H#HD e MWz RoaFl 2 2K (i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue and
profit
—E-1F —E—NF
2015 2014
T Fr
$’000 $'000
& Revenue
REEFE2HI B2 Total revenue from reportable segments 515,769 582,223
=
2 20 U i 5 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (95,804) (123,546)
ZE s Consolidated revenue 419,965 458,677
i A Profit
BYE2HRDE Reportable segment (loss)/profit (1,039) 27,108
(&5#8) /&F
Hitnlg A R EBEFRE Other revenue and net loss 7,681 5,946
[ES= DN Finance costs 1) -
REMEZHERS Valuation gains on investment properties 11,432 1,244
FIFERLTHRESEY Valuation losses on land and buildings
ZhEEE held for own use (1,750) =
EEBE N 2E#R Share of loss of associate (188) (219)
FEEEERTZ Share of profit/(loss) of joint venture 505 (1,019)
wA S (E518)

MR A AR SR A Consolidated profit before taxation 16,640 33,060
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3. EXERDBEWE (H) 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) DERWE (H) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iii) # EE# (iii) Geographic information
TREIBEONAEBINAEZF W The following table sets out information about the
@ RIWVAEEEEEE - BE D geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue
ARGEQAR([BEFRBEE D from external customers and (ii) the group’s fixed
ZHWEBVEER -FF 2HENE assets, associate and joint venture (“specified
DRERHBRBIARMERZNLE non-current assets”). The geographical location of
BEE - EEHFRBDEEZHENVE customers is based on the location at which the
DRBEECERNE (HBEEE services were provided or the goods were
B)RKEWR (HEREE RRR delivered. The geographical location of the
BEQNRZER) MERE - specified non-current assets is based on the

physical location of the asset, in the case of fixed
assets, and the location of operations, in the case

of interests in associate and joint venture.

AREF W BEXRBDEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—2-1% CZE-QNF ZB-1Ff ZZ-0OF
2015 2014 2015 2014
T T T T
$7000 $/000 $/000 $'000
& (FEfi)  Hong Kong (place of domicile) 223,407 233,050 381,616 336,142
B KB Mainland China 89,668 112,319 133,651 126,025
=) Taiwan 43,436 49,227 640 1,328
3| Macau 53,596 57,334 5,141 765
I3 Singapore 9,858 6,747 1,993 2,916
196,558 225,627 141,425 131,034

419,965 458,677 523,041 467,176
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3. BXBERIBBE (A) 3.  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)y DE®E (H) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iv)] BBEFEEFZEH (iv) Information about major customers
BE-Z-HFR-ZF-—NF=A During the years ended 31 March 2015 and
=S+—HLEFE BERBE-H 2014, there was no single external customer that
ABEFZWREAEEWRERE 2 contributed 10% or more of the group’s total
10%3% LA £ o revenue.

4. HtWARBEFE 4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS

—E-EF —E-OF
2015 2014
Fr T
$7000 $'000

Hiug A Other revenue
RITERZFEWA Interest income from bank deposits 3,555 3,582

REYEHRSINABELE Gross rental income from

investment properties 3,960 1,682
R EBWA Service fee income 954 935
Bt Others 412 716
8,881 6,915

HithEsi8 58 Other net loss
HEBTEE ZEIEFHE Net loss on disposal of fixed assets (120) (372)
& 5 B 18 5 4E Net exchange loss (1,080) (597)

(1,200)
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5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—E-HF —E-OF
2015 2014
Fr T
$’000 $000
(@) BERAE (@) Finance costs
RITERZFE Interest on bank advances 1 =
by BIRAX(TEEES (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
& (HaE7)) remuneration (note 7))
REMTRMAETE Contributions to defined contribution
Z B retirement plan 7,939 8,008
He IERHEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 99,158 96,579
107,097 104,587
(0 HfEE (c) Other items
BB A B & Auditors’ remuneration
— % B IRH - audit services 1,998 2,034
— H A BR % — other services 218 197
wE Depreciation 24,149 26,695
EE&EEZHERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 5,641 1,127
FEW R 2 ORE 18 (Reversal of impairment losses)/
wE) REEE impairment losses on trade debtors (164) 164
TREREY 2 EE Operating lease charges in respect of
HEEM land and buildings
- REBAERRK — minimum lease payments 145,446 136,901
-SEHES — contingent rentals 16,812 22,686
EWREMEHES R Rentals receivable from investment
BH#EMX157,0007T properties less direct outgoings
(ZZ&—M%F : 125,0007T) of $157,000 (2014: $125,000) (3,803) (1,557)
BEBA (BaE17(0b)) Cost of inventories * (note 17(b)) 70,422 88,843

P

78 KA F26,402,0007T (= F — 9 4 :
24,910,0007t) ' BIEEITRA - ERK
EHEER  AEHBETSERALRS B
TREMESb)ME B BESP -

Cost of inventories includes $26,402,000 (2014:
$24,910,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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6. MEBBERFIRZFAEBH 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
(@ HEBBERATZAEHA: (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:
—E-HF —E-mF
2015 2014
T T
$/000 $000
THBE-BFRANEH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
TEERE Provision for the year 3,082 5,931
BEFEBRBR Over-provision in respect of prior years (145) (1)
2,937 5,930
KB E - B/ Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
REEERE Provision for the year 1,385 2,781
BEFEBRES Over-provision in respect of prior years (414) (463)
971 2,318
BEEFRBHR Deferred tax
ERMEZRECELERED Origination and reversal of temporary

(K1aE22(b)) differences (note 22(b)) 1,401 (3,111)
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2015 is
calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, taking into account a
one-off reduction of 75% of the tax payable for the
year of assessment 2013/14 subject to a ceiling of
$10,000 allowed by Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Taxation for the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and overseas
subsidiaries are charged at the appropriate current

rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the applicable
tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Mainland China,
Taiwan and Singapore are 25% (2014: 25%), 17%
(2014: 17%) and 17% (2014: 17%) respectively.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income
above MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but
below MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and
thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the year ended
31 March 2015, a special complementary tax
incentive was provided to the effect that the tax free
income threshold was increased from MOP32,000 to
MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000 to
HK$582,000) with profit above MOP600,000
(equivalent to HK$582,000) being taxed at a fixed rate
of 12%.
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REBBERMTZAEH (F)

(a)

RERBRMTZMERS : ()

BE-Z-—NE=A=+—HItFEE B
P9I B 4T B9 45 Bl 4 e BER R 1R e B S
FERBI WA B9 B 2B R 32,0008 P9 7t (4
E131,0007 7T) #ZE300,00058F9 7t (48
E7291,000% 7T) » # H300,000)2 P9 7T
(FBE 291,000/ 7t) K FER T % FI B %
B EBE12%MH

MRIFEGRABR  BRIAEEARTER
RABZHIECEE_ZTZTLF+ A
=S+t -—BZBEEZHMNEL 22 R
10%BEHMFBINB - ARAREEEE HH
ErEYRBEETMAILZHMELRNE
BE2EHEE  HETERENBERERAZ
TERS%  c HAREEEEE T RS 2R
PIRZERF > FrAREBI B D IKZ
ZREEFNENF B ERIELERIES
11,069,000k (=& — W &F :
11,319,0007T) °

6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the special
complementary tax incentive provided was to the
effect that the tax free income threshold was increased
from MOP32,000 to MOP300,000 (equivalent to
HK$31,000 to HK$291,000) with profit above
MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000) being taxed

at a fixed rate of 12%.

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from the
group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all
of the group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly
and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred tax
liabilities of $11,069,000 (2014: $11,319,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits
since these earnings are not intended to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.
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6. GBEBBRARZAEHR (HF) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(b) RHEZIHESTHEMNREABRFEZ (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
AR profit at applicable tax rates:

—E-1F —E—NF

2015 2014

Fr T

$/000 $000

FR B A% R Profit before taxation 16,640 33,060

BENBERBALRERS Notional tax on profit before taxation,

ENHBERARERGE calculated at the rates applicable to

BRBADRA 2 BERHIE profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 1,565 6,592
AR H BB E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,139 973
BAGTHBA ZHRETE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (2,725) (806)
AEABRBEE2RELE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,

NBRAFEECE AEEE net of utilisation during the year 4,614 (1,079)
TRMEZREMEERER Tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax

EERB2RBELE arising from temporary differences (98) (79)
REEFERBIR ZHRE Tax effect of recognition of deferred tax

BEFEERIEL arising from tax losses not recognised

RBZREEE in prior years (627) -
BEFEHEREE Over-provision in respect of prior years (559) (464)

BERBIEXH Actual tax expense 5,309 5,137
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SEREB (D AR (5832F) FE1611K5HK

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed with reference to section

ZEZEMEWT : 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), is as follows:
M
RER
BNEA Bk
Salaries, ~ BBER®A  HEMER
EZWE  allowances Dis-  Retirement
Directors’ and henefits  cretionary scheme ast
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
r T T r T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
“2-if 2015
HITEZE Executive directors
R&A Chan Yum Kit = 6,877 = 18 6,895
#I5E Tsui How Kiu, Shirley = 4,106 = 18 4,124
HER Chui Hing Yee - 2,523 70 18 2,611
RA% Chan Sze Chun = 942 60 18 1,020
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
Rig Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
KEHR Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 = = = 60
EHR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 14,448 130 72 14,830
“B-mF 2014
HITEZE Executive directors
REA Chan Yum Kit - 5,957 - 15 5,972
BRI Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,009 - 15 4,024
HER Chui Hing Yee - 2,486 70 15 2,571
REL Chan Sze Chun - 905 60 15 980
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
Ri& Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
KRB Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
BME Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60




Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ Bt 4 [ 5 it 2+ 5] Annual Report 2015 4F B 4E $it

S 2t o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. BEEME (EF) 7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
e RUNRBYEANCELOESEHZBE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
T REEY 2HEMRE2,775000T (ZF amount of $2,775,000 (2014: $2,758,000) which represents
— P4 :2,758,0007T) °© the market rental value of own land and buildings provided

to directors.

8. BREME&AL 8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
NMI(ZE-—TF AU HEeMEALH Of the six (2014: six) individuals with the highest
(ZE—WF : Nu) EES2MES R emoluments, four (2014: four) are directors whose
EHIKE - HEfmA (Z2—F W) AL emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
ZHEBBENT ¢ emoluments in respect of the other two (2014: two)

individuals are as follows:

—B-EfF —E-IF
2015 2014
T T
$'000 $000
FeRHEMNE Salaries and other emoluments 1,825 1,981
METEAL Discretionary bonuses 154 74
RREHEIMH R Retirement scheme contributions 35 15
2,014 2,070
ZM(ZZE—TF W) Meie AL 2 The emoluments of the two (2014: two) individuals with the
EETHEER : highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—E-EHF —E-NEF
2015 2014
=7t —1,000,0007T $Nil = $1,000,000 1 1

1,000,001t —1,500,0007T $1,000,001 — $1,500,000
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9. XA TEDRREELZF 9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

ARBRERREGGESRFEE-FEIA The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders

AN B I IRFA R E,983,000T 2 EHE (= of the company includes a loss of $1,983,000 (2014:

Z—[O4 : 1,200,0007T) ° $1,200,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the company.

FAEEREAR QN R AN F R A 2 H R ¢ Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s profit
for the year:

=F-1% =F-mF
2015 2014
Fr Tr
$'000 $'000
EHARDE IR BEHE 2 Amount of consolidated loss attributable
BREREEGREBEHH to equity shareholders dealt with in
the company’s financial statements (1,983) (1,200)
RE—EHEBARZRBERE Final dividends from a subsidiary
BEANBEVMEREEZEF attributable to the profit of the
A F E RO ROK A previous financial years, approved
and paid during the year 34,800 33,000
RRRRFER 2GR (Ha£23(a) Company’s profit for the year (note 23(a)) 32,817 31,800
BHCNRENTFARAEZRRERRE 2FE Details of dividends paid and payable to equity

A EE23(b) © shareholders of the company are set out in note 23(b).
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10. Hftr 2 @K H 10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hit2ERBEE B 2HBLE Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income

—E-1F —2-mF
2015 2014
BR B AT BE#E  KREA BREL %
¢E BERX 5 28 BERX &8
Before Before
tax Tax Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax

amount  expense  amount  amount  expense  amount
Fr Fr Fr Tr T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

BERBRIMELRT Exchange differences
BBERRZERER on translation of financial

statements of subsidiaries

outside Hong Kong (1,395) - (1,395) 12,583 - 12,583

BRATHREEN Surplus on revaluation

EfRH of land and buildings
held for own use 30,437 (5,532) 24,905 24,257 (5,620) 18,637
Hitt2E K= Other comprehensive income 29,042 (5532) 23,510 36,840 (5,620) 31,220
1. 8RER 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@ BREZXER (@) Basic earnings per share
BREFBADREARDEEEZER The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
REEMEEFI11,331,000T (=B — W 4F : the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
27,923,0007T) R A FE B BTEER N of the company of $11,331,000 (2014: $27,923,000)
T 19 80287,930,00008 (=& — M &F . and the weighted average number of 287,930,000
287,930,000/ ) 5t & © (2014: 287,930,000) ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

b)) BREZER (b) Diluted earnings per share
HRBE-ZE-—AR-Z-DF=A Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
S+-BLEFEYEABBEXECER earnings per share for the years ended 31 March 2015
ERTEER  AUBE=ZE-—AFR= and 2014 as there were no dilutive potential ordinary
Z-NOFE=A=+t—-BLFEZSRE shares in issue during the years ended 31 March 2015

HREANESREARFEE - and 2014.
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12. BIEEE 12. FIXED ASSETS
(@ #KEHE (@) The group
B BE
HE BHR
HAZEE
WA R B3I RAE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
Land and computer

buildings ~ I¥%E  andoffice ~ HEYX
313

held for own REH  equipment 5 RENE
use carried Plantand  and motor  Leasehold NGt Investment S
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total  properties Total

r r r r i r r
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000

BARfHE: Cost or valuation:
Mg%—zﬁﬂ—ﬁ At 1 April 2013 394,161 6,652 25,480 49371 475,804 31,370 507,234
EjAE Exchange adjustments 4,084 168 206 617 5,075 - 5,075
2E Additions - 120 1,100 13,956 15,176 - 15,176
HE Disposals - (1,758) (3,730) (12,884) (18,372) - (18,372)
EfERE Surplus on revaluation 24,257 = = - 24,257 - 24,257
W 2SEHE Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (10,689) - - - (10,689) - (10,689)
DAEHREZ Fair value adjustment = = = = = 1,244 1,244
HiMREENERE Transfer from land and
RENE buildings to investment
properties (30,649) - - - (30,649) 30,649 -
REZ-MEZAZT-B  AGTMarch204 31064 5382 13056 51060 de0ee 63,205 SBIL
fi&: Representing:
S Cost - 5,36 23,056 51,060 79,498 = 79,498
E-—2-mE Valuation - 2014 381,164 - - - 381,764 63,203 444,427
381,164 5,382 23,056 51,060 460,662 63,263 523,925
WZE-mEMA-A At1 April 2014 381,164 5,362 23,056 51,060 460,662 63,263 523,925
ERfE Exchange adjustments = = (37) (756) (793) = (793)
BE Additions 23,669 - 1,696 20,858 46,223 - 46,223
HeE Disposals - - (1,258) (9,611) (10,869) - (10,869)
EERE Surplus on revaluation 3047 - - - 047 - 0w
B BRHTES Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (9,679) - - - (9,679) - (9,679)
MERE Fair value adjustment (1,750) - - = (1,750) 11,432 9,682
HigRRENER Transfer from land and
ERENZ buildings to investment
) properties (58,050) - - - (58,050) 58,050 =
mRENEER Transfer from investment
ETHREEY properties to land and
buildings 6,236 - - - 6,236 (6,236) -
R-Z-EFZA=1-B  AGIMach205 200 5382 BAST61SST 46T 126509 588926
fi&: Representing:
] Cost - 5,382 23,457 61,551 90,390 - 90,390
fE-—2-1F Valuation - 2015 372,007 = = - 3007 126509 498,536
372,027 23,457 462 417 126,509 588,926
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12. BIEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(@) The group (continued)

B BE
%8 EHR
HAELME
DLl kRE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
Land and computer
buldings ~ I¥%E  andofficc ~ RENE
held for own REH  equipment £8 RENE
use cartied  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold NEE Investment #it
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements ~ Sub-total  properties Total

r r r r r r r
$'000 $/000 $000 $'000 $7000 $000 $000

Rt FERAE: Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

R-E-=EmA-A At 1 April 2013 - 4914 18,401 34,554 57,869 = 57,869
EXAZ Exchange adjustments - 104 136 337 577 - 577
REENE Charge for the year 10,689 417 2,170 13,419 26,695 - 26,695
HEEE Impairment losses = = = 1,127 1127 = 1,127
HERBE Written back on disposal - (1,717) (3338 (12720 (17,777) -
Bl Elimination on revaluation (10,689) = = = (10,689) = (10,689)
RZE-WE=A=+-H At 31 March 2014 = 3,718 17,369 36,715 57,802 = 57,802

R-E-BENA-H At April 2014 = 3,718 17,369 36,715 57,802 = 57,802

ERHZ Exchange adjustments - - 12) (310) (322) - (322)
AEEHE Charge for the year 9,679 417 2,064 11,989 24,149 - 24,149
HEFSE Impairment losses = = = 5,641 5,641 = 5,641

334 Written back on disposal - - (1,130 9611 (10,741) - (10,741)
EfEEHE Elimination on revaluation 9,679) = - - (9,679) - (9,679)
R=ZB-BFZA=t-B  At31 March 2015 . 4135 18,291 44,44 66,850 . 66,850
REFE: Net hook value:

RZE-REZB=+-8  At31 March 2015 372,027 1,47 5,166 17127 395567 126509 522,076

R=B-BE=A=t-H At 31 March 2014 381,164 1,064 5,687 14,345 402,860 63,263 466,123
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12. BEEE (&)

(b)

(c)

WEEE

R-Z—0F BEBENERETREE
+EBUREER BREBEEEEETRE
HIREE - Bt 0 EBEFMAEEEES
EzARERIE  MEREEZREER
MR Z M E 2 AR EIRIEZ T  REEE
5,641,000 (=& —MMH4F : 1,127,0007T)
ERMHERDHERARIANER - AT E
MEDREZSEENREZRESESE
BNz FEREEREEREEIZS% (2
— P4 : 13.5%) {3t o

(i) RAALEZER
TREJNAEEYERGEE BRE
EMEEHENARE URRBE
BB ERERIE 135 - [ AL E
E/NEEDR=ZBEAREER -2
REFEERDISREERMAA
FENTHERENEZESENOT

— F-RMAE:EERE-RE
BIENARE BRTER
HEERTSHEREERE
BEREARNRE

— BRME:ERABE-RBE
AENAAE IFAHEE—
FNTBERBERRABERAT
TBEENERRE - TUHE
HEDEEINETEERN
iz

— B-RMGE:ERATITEEN
BEEYBAENDR

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment losses

In 2015, certain cash-generating units of the Outside
Hong Kong operation recorded losses which indicate
the related fixed assets might have been impaired. As
a result, the directors reviewed the recoverable
amount of the relevant fixed assets and the carrying
amount of such assets was written down to their
recoverable amount of $Nil. An impairment loss of
$5,641,000 (2014: $1,127,000) was recognised in
“selling and distribution costs”. The estimates of
recoverable amount were based on value in use of the
cash-generating units to which these assets belong at a
discount rate of 13.5% (2014: 13.5%).

Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
group’s properties measured at the balance sheet
date on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the

valuation technique as follows:

-  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

using significant unobservable inputs
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() MEZAREBEE(E)
(i) RAEER(HE)
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12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

R-—B-—1# B-—Z-Rf=A=t+-H
=A=+—-8 ZAREFEDTER
ZRARE Fair value measurements as at
Fair value as at 31 March 2015 categorised into
31 March F—& e E=R
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F T F T T F T
$/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
AEE The group
BEMRRL Recurring fair value
B2 measurement
REW* Investment properties:
&8 - Hong Kong 63,104 = = 63,104
—FhEAt - Mainland China 63,405 - - 63,405
FEBRzZ1 Land and buildings held
REZEY for own use:
&8 - Hong Kong 306,926 = - 306,926
—FEAt - Mainland China 65,101 - - 65,101
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12. BEEE (&)
(c) MEZAARBEE(E)
(i) RAALEZRE)

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

R-2—m&E B-—Z-mNE=HA=+-—AH

=A=+—-8 ZAREFEDER
ZARE Fair value measurements as at
Fair value as at 31 March 2014 categorised into

31 March F-R FZR E=R
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fr Fr T T
$/000 $/000 $7000 $/000
rEE The group
BEMRL Recurring fair value
Eit 8 measurement
REWE Investment properties:
—-BB - Hong Kong 63,263 - = 63,263
ARz Land and buildings held
REEY for own use:
BB - Hong Kong 261,607 - - 261,607
—HER - Mainland China 119,557 - - 119,557

BE-_Z-—HRE=ZA=+t—HLEE  £—R
REZRELBER > FAREE=RHNEA
REH(ZZ—NF &) KAEEBRAELS
EHRAAAEERE R BB EZERE -

FEBRMAEREMERFFERZ LR EE
PWR-E-—HEF=ZA=+—HEEHGEE &
EIEEBNEMTRENEENEEEAE
RARET  ZREMTZEIZ2HETBA
EM2EEs  HIOMNGEKSROEEMMG
EMEBRE I NER ME - FEE 2
BRERITREBEAESFNEEERETHE
B AEERRRGESRRYBEETHR

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3 (2014: Nil). The group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the balance sheet date in which they occur.

All of the group’s investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were revalued as at 31 March
2015. The valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
who have among their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The group’s most
senior executive management has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each balance
sheet date annually.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ Bt 4 [ 5 it 2+ 5] Annual Report 2015 4F B 4E $it

S 2t o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. BIEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(© YMEZLIAREBEFEE) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BEE=RIALETEZEH (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements
FARER
fE1ER BARE
Valuation  Unobservable €E st
techniques input Range  Remark
EX
The group
REBZREWH WAEARMLE EAR{E=
Investment properties in Income  Capitalisation 3% (1)
Hong Kong capitalisation rate
approach
BF¥AR
4,000t £
RERBZRENR BEELBE BuReX 25,0007C
Investment properties in Direct  Unit sale rate $4,000 to (2)
Hong Kong comparison $25,000
approach per square feet
RAPE R RENE WAEARMLE EAR{E=
Investment properties in Income  Capitalisation 4% - 7% (M
Mainland China capitalisation rate
approach
BF¥AR
REBREERZ L 4,0007T 2
REEY EEEBZE BUHER 31,0007¢
Land and buildings held for Direct  Unit sale rate $4,000 to (2)
own use in Hong Kong comparison $31,000

approach

per square feet
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12. BIEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(c) MEZAAREBEE(E) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BEE=RIAALETEZEHR (&) (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)
FABE
RER* LN ¢
Valuation ~ Unobservable gE it
techniques input Range  Remark
RPBEAMEFER Azt REEY WAERE EARLE
Land and buildings held for Income  Capitalisation 4% - 7% (1)
own use in Mainland China capitalisation rate
approach
BFFHK
21,0007t 2
RPBEARBEER Rzt REEY EELBE BAHEEXR 91,0007
Land and buildings held for Direct  Unit sale rate $21,000 to (2)
own use in Mainland China comparison $91,000
approach per square meter
B ATUEERARBEAREBEZE Remarks: Relationship of unobservable inputs to
% : fair value:
(1) AREHEFTHERBAHEZEHE (1) The fair value is negatively correlated to the
B RHYEE DAEES - unobservable input that the lower the factor

will result in a higher fair value.

N

2) AABEHEAITHRHGAHIBEZIER (2) The fair value is positively correlated to the
B EARHES AREMS - unobservable input that the higher the factor

will result in a higher fair value.
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12. BIEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(© YMEZLIAREBEFEE) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BEE=ZRILETEZEH (F) (i) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)
FR B=ZRAAREFEZEFHM The movements during the year in the balance of
T these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:
—E-1F —2-nmF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
REME-FH Investment properties — Hong Kong:
BB —H At 1 April 63,263 31,370
BR(Z) /BEE Transfer (to)/from land and buildings
BERzLHRESEY held for own use (6,236) 30,649
NAEFHE Fair value adjustment 6,077 1,244
R=B=+—H At 31 March 63,104 63,263
REWH* - HERM : Investment properties — Mainland China:
ROA—H At 1 April - -
BERAFERALIMR  Transfer from land and buildings held
BEY for own use 58,050 -
DNAERE Fair value adjustment 5,355 -
R=B=+—8 At 31 March 63,405 =
BFEABAZIHRESEY Land and buildings held for own
—&E: use — Hong Kong:
REA—H At 1 April 261,607 286,600
FRIBE Addition during the year 23,669 -
BER (B)REWHE  Transfer from/(to) investment properties 6,236 (30,649)
REENE Depreciation charge for the year (7,278) (7,187)
DNAERE Fair value adjustment (1,750) =
ERAEER Surplus on revaluation 24,442 12,843

R=A=+—H At 31 March 306,926 261,607
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12. BEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(0 YEZAREE(E) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BEE=RIAALETEZEHR (&) (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements (continued)

“E-HF —E-—NEF

2015 2014

Fr T

$'000 $'000

BEEBRAZL®RESEY Land and buildings held for own
—hERAM use — Mainland China:

REB—H At 1 April 119,557 107,561
BREREWME Transfer to investment properties (58,050) =

fE A Exchange adjustments - 4,084
REEE Depreciation charge for the year (2,401) (3,502)

ERAE Surplus on revaluation 5,995 11,414

R=B=+—8H At 31 March 65,101 119,557
REMEQIABZHBERGE WS Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised
RZ[REMFE 2 HEWRE IR - in the line item “valuation gains on investment properties”

on the face of the consolidated income statement.

E A& 830,437,00070 (=& — [0 Revaluation surplus of $30,437,000 (2014: $24,257,000)
£ 1 24,257,0007T) RE b 2 H K &= are recognised in other comprehensive income in “land and
TR EZEYEMREHB] AR buildings revaluation reserve”. Had the above land and
Rofd Lz HFARA 2L HRE buildings held for own use been carried at cost less
EMERARNBREIFEIE R= accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would
T-REF=ZA=t+-AZKREER have been $97,541,000 (2014: $76,734,000) at 31 March
#97,541,000T (=& — M & : 2015.

76,734,0007C) °
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12. BIEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(d) MEZREFREIFOT : (d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
rEH
The group
—E-HF —E-mEF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
RE® In Hong Kong
-RPHEE — Long leases 166,910 130,160
—-HHEE — Medium-term leases 196,620 188,520
—EHEE — Short leases 6,500 6,190
BHBFEIN Outside Hong Kong
-REHEE — Long leases 16,709 16,456
-HHEE — Medium-term leases 111,797 103,101
498,536 444,427
Rk : Representing:
LA R ESREER A Land and buildings held for own use
2L REEY carried at fair value 372,027 381,164
REWH Investment properties 126,509 63,263

498,536 444,427
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12. BEEE (&)

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
RESEHEHACEEEE (e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
FERBREHEFAANERENH All properties held under operating leases that would
EEZYERELRENE - otherwise meet the definition of investment property
are classified as investment property.
AEBFRKEHEREREYH - WEH The group leases out investment properties under
E-RAOLTBE—FE=F » XATRIH operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
RNENMEMERRER - HENHRER period of one to three years, with an option to renew
FEZERE  URRTEAS - FEEL the lease after that date at which time all terms are
EHEHNTEEHAEHESE - renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted
annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
REBZFABENKEHEEHRE The group’s total future minimum lease payments
WHREAS N RBENT : under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable
as follows:
TEH
The group
—B-AF —Z-mF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 4,280 2,133
—FREBEFA After 1 year but within 5 years 4,250 478

8,530 2,611
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13. RIE AT 2 e 13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
NN
The company

—E-HF —E-NEF

2015 2014

Fr Fr

$000 $7000

LMD BAAE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672

BE Ut 1B A B R IE Amount due from a subsidiary 204,536 209,162

266,208 270,834
EUMEBLARRERSEER  REREETE Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
HEEERATEREERR-—FRKRE - and has no fixed terms of repayment but is not expected to

be recovered within one year from the balance sheet date.

TRATEFEAEEXE EEREEBZM The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
BRRZHE - BREAZBIN IFEZRSD which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
HAEBR - the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.
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13. R BRA T 2= (&)
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13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HHEERILA
BRORAR Proportion of ownership interest
B& /&R A5E
L Bxzwf  ERER
REEHE Particulars The ARF  WELF
Place of of issued and group’s BE 2]

LAER incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective  Held bythe ~ Held bya E2:3 30
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
Moiselle (BVI) Limited ABERRHE 2,000RBRAEEIXT 100% 100% - REEZR
British Virgin Islands 2,000 shares of US§1 each Investment holding
Always Profit Holdings ARERRRE IREEIER 100% - 100% REZR
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
EEERLT BE 5000008 K4 100% - 100%  FERMRHRES
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
BEREHRERAT B EEERTE 100% - 100%  WRRBRAEES
200,000 1 3 Sourcing of materials
ZBR1,800,001 R 1D and property holding

Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong Deferred non voting

200,000 shares

Ordinary

1,800,001 shares
RHRERRLA B BB A 100% - 100% REZHK
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
B2(BE)ARAT B R R 100% - 100%  BHESRESHES
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Trading of fashion apparel

and accessories
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13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RERRILA
BROTRARE Proportion of ownership interest
R/ 50
EuEAs Bxzwf ERER
REEnE Particulars The A%E  WEAT
Place of of issued and group’s 2] 2]

NAER incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective  Heldbythe  Held bya E2:3 30
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
REARARAT B 2R 100% - 100% RERR
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
REREERLA BE 1,008 100% - 100% REZR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Investment holding
Euro Legend Assets Limited ZBARRES 1REEI£T 100% - 100% REZR
British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding

AERAT BE 10081 13 100% - 100% REZR
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment holding
BRARARLA B 300,000 13 100% - 100%  FERHRHRED
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories

YEREARBRAR B RRA 100% - 100% REZR
iMaroon International Company Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
WERERRLA B 10,0008 1 100% - 100% VESE
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
R (BR)BRLA B 1,000,000R K3 100% - 100%  FERHRHRED
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel

and accessories
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13. AMB AT 2% (&) 13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BEERLA
BRARMRE Proportion of ownership interest

R/ g3 |
A Ehz#E  ERER
REBEHY Particulars The A7 KWEAF
Place of of issued and group’s 55 A
NGES incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective  Heldby the  Held hya TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
FREBERAT £ Rk 100% - 100% REER
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. HmsE 500,000 8 R EE 100% = 100% ZERHRHRES
Singapore 13 T Retail of fashion apparel
500,000 shares of and accessories
SGS$1 each
ZERRAR ABERRES \REEIET 100% - 100% ZER RO RE S
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
EXREARAA £ 500,008 1 7 100% - 100% ZER R R A
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
REERERAA B 50,0008 1 100% - 100% ZER R R A
Perfect National International Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
EEARAH ABERRES 1REBIER 100% - 100% REBR
Profair Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
EEZEERAA BB WRB A 100% = 100% ZERH RO REH

Regal Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Retail of fashion apparel

and accessories
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13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RERRILA
BROTRARE Proportion of ownership interest
R/ 50
EuEAs Bxzwf ERER
REEnE Particulars The A27  WELF
Place of of issued and group’s 2] 2]
REER incorporation fully paid-up share/ ~effective ~ Held by the ~ Held by a IERH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
ERRARRAT B 1,008 B4 100% - 100% nxsA
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
FERERRAT BE HRR R 100% - 100% RERR
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Investment holding
ERERAA ABEAZHE  10000REREEIXR 100% - 100% REER
Sosuccess Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares of USS$1 each Investment holding
REARERLE RBEAREE IREEIXT 100% - 100% REZR
Timepro International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
RHRRERAT AP &5, 0008F % 100% - 100%  FERMRHRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau Registered capital Retail of fashion apparel
MOP25,000 and accessories
ZRRARRAA B BB A 100% - 100% REZHK
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
RESNERAE BE 500,000 £ 100% - 100%  BHBHREHES
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Trading of fashion apparel

and accessories
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13. RB AT 2% (&) 13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BEERLP
BEATRAR Proportion of ownership interest
R& /&R A5H
AL ErzwfE  ERER
REEHE Particulars The 3R HEARA
Place of of issued and group’s #E BE

RRER incorporation fully paid-up share/ ~effective  Held by the ~ Held by a TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
BERARFIERLT * ] 2,100,007 100% - 100% HEAR
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing The PRC $2,100,000 Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Company Limited * garments
HERKRYBRAF * G 8,400,007 100% - 100% HERK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) The PRC $8,400,000 Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. * garments
MR EHRERAT hE AR%500,0007T 100% - 100%  HEEHRGRES
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion Wholesale The PRC RMB500,000 Wholesale of fashion
Co., Ltd. * apparel and accessories
MIEXERTERRAT HE AK%2,000,0007 100% - 100% FERNENH
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail The PRC RMB2,000,000 PR BLER
Limited Company * Retail and wholesale of
fashion apparel and
accessories

* REBPEEGIEMZIEEERE - *  These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises

registered under the laws of the PRC.
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14. REBEE AT 2R 14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
TEE
The group

—F-1% —F-DF

2015 2014

Fr Fr

$/000 $7000

FE W Bt & A B R IE Amount due from an associate 1,400 1,300
EihaE T Share of net liabilities (435) (247)

965 1,053
REBRBEE AT Z2ERZFBOT : Details of the group’s interest in the associate are as

follows:
RERRLA
Proportion of
ownership interest
BRR 550
AL A R BERAFE ERER
£ Beny Particulars The HE2R
RRERA Place of of issued group’s BE

BENRAH Form of business incorporation and paid up effective  Held by a IERH
Name of associate structure and operation capital interest  subsidiary Principal activity

A Hidden Lab Limited A BE BB A 50% 50% SER MRS
Incorporated Hong Kong 2 shares REH

Retail of

fashion apparel

and accessories
RESHBMREABEETIIRZA Hidden A Hidden Lab Limited accounted for using the equity
Lab LimitedJ33k ET AR - HXEWSRE o method in the consolidated financial statements is an

unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not

available.
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14, RBEE DR 2ER (&) 14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
BMENR M BERBE : Summary of financial information on the associate:
EEFRR
iE =R+ Net iy 22 B8
Assets Liabilities liabilities Revenue Loss
T Fr Fr Fr Fr
$/000 $/000 $7000 $/000 $/000
—E-5F 2015
100%71& 3 100 per cent 1,929 (2,800) 871) 22 377)
rEEZER The group’s effective
s interest 965 (1,400) (435) 11 (188)
—T-NF 2014
100%7E 2% 100 per cent 2,106 (2,600) (494) 1,174 (438)
rEBEER The group’s effective
R interest 1,053 (1,300) (247) 587 (219)
15. RAeB AT 2R 15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
xEHE
The group
—2-1F —ZF-mE
2015 2014
T T
$/000 $000
P& & D RIFIE Amount due from a joint venture 855 1,360

EEEEFHE Share of net liabilities (855) (1,360)
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15. REE DT 2ER (&) 15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
AEBREE QAR 2ER (UERERGS Details of the group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
BHRERIR) HBEOT ¢ accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

BERRLA
Proportion of

ownership interest

BRTR A&E
% AL K ARREEE  ERER
EY§70 Rend Particulars The HEAF
Form of Place of of issued group’s BE EX:3 3
RENAER business incorporation and paidup ~ effective  Held by a Principal
Name of joint venture structure and operation capital interest  subsidiary activity
Sequoia HK, Limited A A £ 100/ & 13 50% 50% TERN
Incorporated Hong Kong 100 shares R & % B
Retail of
fashion apparel
and accessories
REEBEK -2 8H2E % A FSequoia HK, Sequoia HK, Limited, the only joint venture in which the
LimitedJ33E E A ) » HIEHI5HE - group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose

quoted market price is not available.
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15. REERR 2R (&) 15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
BEARAZUBERBME-FAEEERES Summary of financial information on the joint venture —

the group’s effective interest:

—E-HF —E-OF

2015 2014

Fx Fx

$’000 $000

FREEE Non-current assets 53 197

RBEE Current assets 248 1,335
REBERE Current liabilities (1,156) (2,892)
BEFE Net liabilities (855) (1,360)

WA Income 2,151 2,692
X Expenses (1,646) (3,711)
FRRF, (BR) Profit/(loss) for the year 505 (1,019)

16. HiEE 16. OTHER ASSETS

HiEEEHES A EZHEREMIZE > FEH Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits
AREER B —F&WE - which are expected to be recovered after one year from the

balance sheet date.
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17. #& 17. INVENTORIES
) REEEEAEBRZEERRE: (@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise:
rEE
The group

—E-EF —E-IEF

2015 2014

Fr Fr

$7000 $'000

R AT Raw materials 3,638 3,848
EHm Work in progress 1,425 2,305
SRR Finished goods 65,416 52,369
70,479 58,522
by BRRAPIAFABRZFESEZD (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised
R as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

follows:
rEH
The group

—E-1F —E-ImF

2015 2014

Fr FTr

$000 $'000

EEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 66,551 89,652

Wigs, (REIME) FE Write-down/(reversal of write-down)
of inventories 3,871 (809)

70,422
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18. FEURBR FX % H 1th FE UL FX 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEE NN
The group The company

—E-HF —E-NFE ZE-HEF —EZ-—0OF

2015 2014 2015 2014

Tr T Fr Fr

$/000 $/000 $/000 $000

FE U BR X Trade debtors 13,237 18,653 - =
B MR Less: Impairment losses on

WIEEE trade debtors - (164) - _

13,237 18,489 - -

L ENGE S Amount due from

a subsidiary - = 34,800 33,000
e ENRER Deposits, prepayments and
H At FE WK other receivables 37,912 30,586 109 109
51,149 49,075 34,909 33,109
FT 78 FE U BR TR % L b BB WK (B 4% BB Bt 1 All of the trade and other receivables (including amount
AZEHE) AR —ERKEHERZAEX o due from a subsidiary) are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year.

ERHRBARREAZEIRF REREEEER Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free

FRE o and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

As of the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables and net of impairment losses on trade

debtors), based on invoice date, is as follows:

rEE

The group
—E-EHF —E-mF
2015 2014
Fr T
$7000 $'000
30HR Within 30 days 11,646 14,274
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 1,521 4,176
91EZ180H Between 91 to 180 days 56 39
181HZE365H Between 181 to 365 days 14 -
13,237 18,489

FEWBR B ZH BELE30290H &
B o AEEEEHR 2 #E — S EENH
¥24(@) °

ERERZHESE

FE W BR R 2 B EE 18 LA B BR s 6% - A
REER B KREE BRI TR MR
BB EEESEELERRRAME (B
B ET()(0)) ©

RZZE-—RF=A=+-—H  xEEEK
BRRET (ZZ—E  164,000T) B1Z
HER1ERETE RS RME © ERIEERR
BEzRWREHDHGEERSE 2T HE
B MizEE L 0 AL EERFIE
A FUE B REBERREZS T
(ZZ— U4 : 164,000t ) FERISRIEE ©

(b)

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit

policy are set out in note 24(a).

Impairment losses of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the group
is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off

against trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

At 31 March 2015, the group’s trade debtors of $Nil
(2014: $164,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that no portion of the
receivables to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of $Nil (2014:
$164,000) were recognised.
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18. FEURBR 3R I H 1th FE U Fh (48) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(0 IR E 2 FEWER X (c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
b £ 8 Bl 25 £ B # AR B R E 2 FE W BR K The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
ZIREDMAT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
is as follows:
rEE
The group
- —ZE-mEF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
I £ 360 5 =R B Neither past due nor impaired 11,829 16,885
BHTZ30H Less than 30 days past due 1,168 1,063
BH318 E90H 31 to 90 days past due 226 536
BE91H E180H 91 to 180 days past due 14 5
1,408 1,604
13,237 18,489
I #5160 B SR B 2 FE R I R AT B4R Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
WHENCHEZEREF ° relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

2 80 HA{B AR OR (B 2 FE WK T) B — #HE B AR Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
EEERHRITHZBUTFER - H to a number of independent customers that have a
REEEZNEEAEHREHRDAK good track record with the group. Based on past
BRUUZ2WE - RIBBELER  EE experience, management believes that no impairment
[E 485 30 B 4 B R 7% 5 45 AR 4F R E 1 allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
& AEBU B ZESERTEEMER there has not been a significant change in credit
m ° quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable. The group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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19. REREBITER 19. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
(@ BREeRBOEREE: (@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:
rEE LN
The group The company
—g-1% ZZ-QNF ZB-1Ff ZE-QNF
2015 2014 2015 2014
T T T T
$'000 $"000 $/000 $"000
RITER Deposits with banks
—FHREE=E — Within three months to
AR E maturity when placed 123,057 52,714 - =
- FHRAB=@E — More than three months to
AEEH maturity when placed - 2,703 - -
RITEARRRE Cash at bank and in hand 60,835 194,724 896 275

REESEBERZ Cash and bank deposits in
RERBITHER the balance sheet 183,892 250,141 896 275

B EHMBR=MEA Less: Deposits with banks with

BEBZRIT more than three months
ER to maturity when placed - (2,703)

REEREMERZ Cash and cash equivalents in
BHERELEEY  the consolidated cash flow
statement 183,892 247,438
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19. BERBITER (& 19. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
(b)) BRBAGHEKEEBFIELEZREZ (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
HER generated from operations:
“E-EF —ZT-F
2015 2014
= T T
Note $/000 $000
BR%1 A1 s A Profit before taxation 16,640 33,060
BT HIELFAE Adjustments for:
REWME2fhE Valuation gains on investment
28 properties 12 (11,432) (1,244)
BEERAZLH Valuation losses on land and
REEY 2 HERE  buildings held for own use 12 1,750 -
weE Depreciation 5(c) 24,149 26,695
EEEEZBEEE Impairment losses on fixed assets 5(c) 5,641 1,127
WM Z (BERI{E (Reversal of impairment losses)/
B8 REERE impairment losses on trade debtors 5(c) (164) 164
il & B AR Finance costs 5(a) 1 -
FIE WA Interest income 4 (3,555) (3,582)
LEEEEEZ Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 4 120 372
bk
EBhEE AR 2ER Share of loss of associate 188 219
BLEEENRZ Share of (profit)/loss of joint venture (505) 1,019
CaRl) &8
EXEE Foreign exchange loss 2,045 3,979
EEESEE: Changes in working capital:
HEERLD () Decrease/(increase) in other assets 2,679 (6,410)
& (Em) (Increase)/decrease in inventories (13,699) 2,094
FEULES & N B FIEE I Increase in amount due from an associate (100) (300)
EWEE D ENE Decrease/(increase) in amount
A, () due from a joint venture 505 (1,019)
P Lz B 0 Bz L fth BE (Increase)/decrease in trade and
Wk () R other receivables (2,096) 8,271
FEAT BR R % H ftt FE Increase in trade and other payables 956 8,233
(RE7&-Yil

REEBMELE2RE  Cash generated from operations 23,123 72,678
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20. FEASRRFR R H At BB 5K 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
rEE NN
The group The company
—E-Rf ZZ-DOF —E-IAFf ZZT-OF
2015 2014 2015 2014
Fr T Fr T
$000 $000 $/000 $000
FEA3 BR X Trade payables 6,050 3,715 - -
HENARIER Other creditors and
FEst 8 M accrued charges 53,337 55,377 1,646 2,116
59,387 59,092 1,646 2,116
FEHMEENRERREMESRIIER —FR All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
BE- settled within one year.
REER  REZEHFEZEAERR (25 As of the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade
AR R EA B RA) ZERRITWMT creditors (which are included in trade and other payables),
based on the invoice date, is as follows:
r&EE
The group
—E-1F —E-IF
2015 2014
Fr T
$’000 $'000
30A Within 30 days 1,412 1,696
31HZE90H Between 31 to 90 days 3,843 1,783
#iB90H Over 90 days 795 236

3,715

6,050
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21. EERKEFR

AEBERBEEBCGAFIED BT EURM)
HREB(EBRA) EBREERERZ
EEHTRHMEABEHE ((BESF
gl  BESTHEAHBUZTEAEE
ZREMFERARETE - RIFBESEE
EEREESEREEBBEARAZ5%M
ZiTEER BEEABBEBRALRA
30,000t (= —MWEF XA ZA£A25,000
TT) o MBS R HRDAEERE -

TEZHBLARCSHEAM S BFEE
ZREMKEE - KEMBLREARPE
BEERFE 2B THEELRDZGE
R HRTDENEHRE -

REBEEXBCHWBARAZEECE
B2HEMABE T RASKAEEZR
EHAETE - LB ARARSEREM
Rt B2 EREREHF SR 0%
FRHRERRAES TRIRA ZME@A
BRARERFA -

21.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

(c)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to
June 2014). Contributions to the MPF scheme vest

immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions

to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan chose to participate in a defined contribution
scheme governed by the Labour Pension Act of
Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total
salaries of the participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution
scheme, the contribution deposited into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance of

Taiwan.
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21. BERKER () 21. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
(d) TAZTH0KE B 1 7]z & T 2 B2 | 37 3R (d) Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in
BAEB P RABESTE ((HRATE the Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”)
2]) MELARAREIZTEKHEFM= organised by the government of Singapore. This
ETEOLEAFRRABEEMR - RiEPR subsidiary and its employees are required to
DESEA  ERFRA/THEBETAE contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
wmRA - MEARNEHEERE  WEHR CPF. The contributions are charged to the income
RERREREZ2EBRLBE—FNE statement as they become payable in accordance with
fEARSE - the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no further

obligations for the actual pension payments or

postretirement benefits beyond its contributions.

BRLEdEN  AEETBEAERMESR Save as set out above, the group has no other material
RBAFRZEMEREE - obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

AEMRAFTEZHRAREERTABE Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(@ HFEEEEBRFATRZAHEBEGRE: (@) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet
represents:
rxEE
The group

—E-HF —E-mF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000

REEFRBFES Provision for Hong Kong Profits
s Tax for the year 3,082 5,931
ENEHFEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (6,949) (3,189)
(3,867) 2,742
BBIRIBIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 395 565
3,472) 3,307

Rk Representing:

Al BRI IE Tax recoverable (4,230) (182)
& A3 B 18 Tax payable 758 3,489

(3,472)
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22. REEERBRATZHMES (&) 22. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
b)) EEIAELEFMESHEEREE: (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
KEE The group
RAFEEGEEEABRERZEL The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
FEBiasE  (E8) 2dRHoREH recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
BEMT : movements during the year are as follows:
FESREE
RERHE
Depreciation AER HEERZ
in excess of FEEN  MEFE  ARAE
therelated ~ Eff#1%  Unrealised Write- Future
depreciation ~ Revaluation profits on downof  henefit of aE
allowances of properties inventories inventories tax losses Total
r r r r i r
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
RZE-=£NA-A At 1 April 2013 (3,610) 61,569 (2,294) (3,615) - 52,050
BREETIA Credited to profit or loss (1,205) - (201) (1,705) - (3,111)
REPIR Charged to reserves - 5,620 = = = 5,620
WZE-ME=A=F—-H At31 March 2014 (4,815) 67,189 (2,495) (5,320) - 54,559
RZZ-DEMA—R At 1 April 2014 (4,815) 67,189 (2,495) (5,320) - 54,559
BHEEZHRGIA) /MR (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (548) 1,050 (60) 1,586 (627) 1,401
EYCLREITS Charged to reserves - 5,532 - - - 5,532

RZB-ZFE=A=F-H At31 March 2015

73,771

(3,734)
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22. MEEBEEEBRIT~ZEBH (&) 22. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(continued)
BEEREE: (B) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)
EHE
The group
“B-EHF —Z—mE
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
REERBERBIAZEL Net deferred tax asset recognised
S EEF5 in the balance sheet (8,375) (9,238)
REEABRBERAZEL Net deferred tax liability recognised
FEHAaEFHE in the balance sheet 69,867 63,797
61,492 54,559
(00 RERABELEMEBHEE: (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
REBRMT1 0 ZBFTEE  AEB R In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
ARELERTHEREERERDELT note 1(o0), the group and the company have not

Hit

FEHRERE : recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the
following temporary differences:
AEME ERAF
The group The company
“E-HF —E-—NE ZFT-HF —Z-NF
2015 2014 2015 2014
Fr T Fr Fr
$/000 $7000 $/000 $7000
REEE Tax losses 76,474 77,302 9,729 7,746
WEZNIEB  Depreciation in excess of
WEHE the related depreciation
REEEE allowances and impairment
2R EEE losses on fixed assets 5,937 3,791 - =

Others 4,645 = - -
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22. REEERBRATZHMES (&) 22. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

() KREREEMBHEE: (&) (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (continued)
AERABEEEATEELBEFER Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
ZEBRZHFANEMZIE3S,209,0007T $38,209,000 (2014: $35,220,000) which can be
(Z=—W% :35,220,0007T) ° IRIERE carried forward up to five years from the year in which
BIEHRBI  §4%838,265,000C (= F— the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
£ :42,082,0007T) 3 £ fE M H o $38,265,000 (2014: $42,082,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.

23. EX - RERKE 23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@ EEHH22H (@ Movements in components of equity
FEBEGEEEEBOREIRFEZ The reconciliation between the opening and closing
HERANGERZEDR - AL RAEES balances of each component of the group’s
HORFIRFEB2SBFHEHART consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
X e statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes

in the company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below.
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23, B HEERBRE (&) 23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(@ EZBH2LEHE) (@ Movements in components of equity (continued)
EAN The company
Rz  RHEE HH8ER  REEF LARRER
Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
r r r r r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZB-ZfMA-Az&H Balance at 1 April 2013 2,880 65,327 61,572 172,195 301,974
ZE-CE/-NEZEESD: Changes in equity in 2013/14:
ER2EUSEE H29) Total comprehensive income
for the year (note 9) = = = 31,800 31,800
EEEREZRE (BZ230)1) Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year
(note 23(b)(ii)) - - - (20,155) (20,155)

REEEERZRE HE230001) Dividend declared in respect
of the current year

(note 23(b)(i)) - - - (11,517) (11,517)
R-ZZB-BE=A=t-AzkH Balance at 31 March 2014 2,880 65,327 61,572 172,323 302,102
R-Z2-BENA-H & Balance at 1 April 2014 2,880 65,327 61,572 172,323 302,102
ZE-RE/-REZERED: Changes in equity in 2014/15:
ER2EUSEE (M) Total comprehensive income

for the year (note 9) - - - 32,817 32,817
EECREZRE (HE230)i) Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year

(note 23(b)(ii)) - - - (23,035) (23,035)
REEEERZRE (HE230)1) Dividend declared in respect

of the current year

(note 23(b)(i)) - - - (11,517) (11,517)

RZE-TE=A=t-Hz&#H Balance at 31 March 2015 2,880 65,327 61,572 170,588 300,367
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23. BA - BERRKE (F) 23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
b) BE (b) Dividends
(i) BNELAERKRZEAFERE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—E-HF —E-mF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
EERRIKSFHRE  Interim dividend declared and
R B R4 paid of 4 cents per ordinary share
(ZZ2—mF: 8K (2014: 4 cents per ordinary share) 11,517 11,517
HBER4L)
REERZEZDIKAE Final dividend proposed after
R E S REERAML the balance sheet date
(ZZ-—mF :8R of 4 cents per ordinary share
HERadl) (2014: 8 cents per ordinary share) 11,517 23,035
23,034 34,552
REEAREZ IR AREREIL The final dividend proposed after the balance
REFEHRABAEE - sheet date has not been recognised as a liability

at the balance sheet date.

(i) JETARL A EmREZ F— BB F (ii)
ERE  IRAEEEZERIRNT

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

=F-1% —F-DF
2015 2014
T T
$7000 $'000

BRL—MEEE  EHM Final dividend in respect of
AEE A RIRA the previous financial year,
KREBESREBASI  approved and paid during the year,
(ZE2—mF: of 8 cents per ordinary share
BREBER7) (2014: 7 cents per ordinary share) 23,035 20,155
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23, BE BERKREL (&) 23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(© BRAE (c) Share capital
EEREZEITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—E-F1f “EZ-NE
2015 2014
R4 EE K& E
Number 8 Number &8
of shares Amount of shares Amount
TR T Tk T
000 $000 000 $'000
EE Authorised:
BRABOITZEER Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
BRTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
REERBRREER At beginning of the year and
at end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880
ZTERBEANERERTESRZKE - The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
BERAFEZLERITE—ZRERE - dividends as declared from time to time and are
FFEEBEREARATZRBEEZER entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
L o company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the company’s residual assets.
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23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium account is
distributable to shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out

in note 1(r).
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23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
owned foreign investment enterprises, the PRC
subsidiaries of the company are required to set
up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses or to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon
the revision of the law on 27 October 2005 and
no transfer to staff general fund has been made

since.

Land and building revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(g)).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.
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23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $297,487,000 (2014: $299,222,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a
final dividend of 4 cents per ordinary share (2014: 8
cents per ordinary share), amounting to $11,517,000
(2014: $23,035,000) (note 23(b)). This dividend has
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Since the group is able to generate satisfactory returns
from internal capital, the group is not financed by

external borrowings during the current year.
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24. cREAREERDAAE
FE -RBES FEREBRKRDEREE
XB2 ERERBEIPEE - XEBFRIEZ
ZERBERAEEEEZERKBAEA 2GS
EEREFRMN T X -

(@ FERR
REBCEERARTEHERERRE
BN EL - EEEEHERERZEE
BSR > WHZREEERBIFEES -

23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f)

Capital management (continued)

During 2015, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from 2014,
was to maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its
liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or adjust
the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders or sell assets to increase

the cash level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the group’s business. The

group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These receivables are due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Bank deposits are placed normally with counterparties
that have sound credit ratings. Therefore, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to

meet its obligations.

At the balance sheet date, 12% (2014: 6%) and 36%
(2014: 22%) of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the group’s largest debtor and the five

largest debtors respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. The group has not provided any
financial guarantee which would expose the group or

the company to credit risk.
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24, cREREERAAE(E
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24.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the group’s and
the company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flow (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the

group and the company can be required to pay:
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24, SRHEREERAAME(F 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
b) REBESREME(H) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
r5H
The group
—E-1f —E-mE
2015 2014
THRFRRERN ARRTRRA SR
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
—FRE £ERz %R fERZ
BEEA RkEE REEX REE
R Balance R Balance
Within sheet Within sheet
1 year or BE  crying  yearor 8% carying
on demand Total amount  on demand Total amount

T T r T T T
$000 $000 $000 §/000 §/000 §/000

ERERREMER Trade and other payables 59,387 59,387 59,387 59,092 59,092 59,092
KAH
The company
“E-1F “E-ME
2015 2014
THRFRR SN ARRTRRAER

Contractual Contractual

undiscounted undiscounted

cash outflow cash outflow
—ERg LRy —EAE 4gny
BRERA REE EERH REE
) Balance ER3L Balance
Within sheet Within sheet
1 year or BE  carrying 1 yearor BFE  cnying
on demand Total amount  on demand Total amount

T T r T T T
$000 $000 $'000 §/000 §/000 §/000

Other payables 1,646 1,646 1,646 2,116 2,116 2,116
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24, SREREERAAE(F 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

() F=EmEE (c) Interest rate risk
TEBZHNERBREIERBTEEHE The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its
=3 interest-bearing financial assets.

(i) FEEZE (i) Interest rate profile
TRAAEENREERTEERE The following table details the interest rate profile
EZFZEER of the group’s interest-bearing financial assets at

the balance sheet date:

by |
The group
“B-If “E-mE
2015 2014
ERA= ERF=
Effective Fr Effective T
interest rate $'000 interest rate $'000
BENZEREE " Fixed rate financial assets:
-RITER — Deposits with banks 2.42% 123,057 0.76% 55,417
(i) BBE DT (i) Sensitivity analysis
AEBEWESREMRDABETA The group does not account for any fixed rate
EazEREMEE Bt RNE& financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
EH2EMANZEHFSHIERE Therefore, a change in interest rates at the

R E o balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(d) Currency risk

The group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges
amongst group entities which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros, Sterling

pounds and Hong Kong dollars.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong
Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are denominated
in either Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars,
except for certain purchases from Europe. Given that
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management does not expect that there will be
any significant currency risk associated with such
United States dollars denominated transactions. For
transactions denominated in Euros and Sterling
pounds, since the volume of such transactions is not
significant, management considers the exposure to

currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from group
entities and transactions amongst group entities that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, most of other
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For
borrowings and transactions amongst group entities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the management

considers that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies

for managing such risk were unchanged from 2014.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the group’s significant
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. The exposure arising from the borrowings
from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates ruling at the year
end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong into the group’s presentation

currency are excluded.

rEE
The group
ARz N SRR
Exposure to foreign currencies
(B ®5IR)
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E-1F —E-mF
2015 2014
B ®E BT B ®iE BT
Sterling Hong Kong Sterling Hong Kong
Euros pounds dollars Euros pounds dollars
Tr T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
W EBR & A FEFR Trade and other receivables - - 49,268 = 1,291 19,435
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents - - 41 - - 52
P EER R H AL Trade and other payables  (4,681) - (40,3400  (1,651) - (37,409
ERIAEERER Net exposure arising from
REEZBBFR recognised assets and

liabilities (4,681) - 8,969 (1,651) 1,291 (17,922)
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24, SREREERARE (& 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
d) E¥mEEE) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) BBEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRETAEEREZEBRAEX The following table indicates the instantaneous
Bz IEERNE RSB HARE change in the group’s profits after tax and
B 2 BR A 1K 08 R R AR B0 R 2 BD B retained profits that would arise if foreign
FE ERIHBABSBHELERTT exchange rates to which the group entities have
Bopltms EREBIRETR significant exposure at the balance sheet date had
ZENBHEERAFFIZXET LA changed at that date, assuming all other risk
HEB EERBRTE - variables remained constant. In this respect, it is

assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar

against other currencies.

“E-1% —E-MF
2015 2014

EX RHEKRER REEH Ex RH&ERN REEN
t#/ BY)/ B/ t/ BH/ (EY)/
(F&) Bm Bm (%) 2 2

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/ (decrease) (Decrease)/  (Decrease)/
in foreign increase increase in foreign increase  increase in

exchange inprofits inretained  exchange in profits retained

rates  after tax profits rates after tax profits

r r r r

$'000 $'000 $000 $000

B Euros 10% (391 (391) 10% (138) (138)
(10)% 391 391 (10)% 138 138

R Sterling pounds 10% - - 10% 108 108
(10)% - - (10)% (108) (108)

BT Hong Kong dollars 5% 183 183 5% (813) (813)

(5)%
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24, cREREERAAE(E

d) BE¥ERGE)

(ii) HBEEZH (E)
ERFEVN 2O MEREFAEER
BERELER D E B ENES
VIEREEAZERGBRBBIT 2
Bagi® -

e

BREINMECBRRIIEERZEH
ERAREMFEAEEMFRLR
FEAEASEHEIERR S
BMITE BEEEBULFEETSR
BERZHEEBFELNNENRE
WBRFR ° b3 4T R B IE B BRI
MBLAR M BRERBRERNEE
ZEIEHREEZEZH - ZED
WA= —MF 2] — BT -

(e) ARE
FFEeMIANREEAN-ZT-—HFR
—E-NE=ZA=t—HZ2ARETE

&P

BERERZHEIE - BB ZEER
REER  REREEEERY - BN
ERF BEREZQAAELESE -
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities” profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance

sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
group which expose the group to currency risk at
the balance sheet date, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the group which
are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into
the group’s presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2014.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2015 and 2014. Balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment
terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to

disclose their fair values.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ Bt 4 [ 5 it 2+ 5] Annual Report 2015 4F B 4E $it

S 2t o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A8 5)R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. EiE 25. COMMITMENTS
@ RZZE-—HRF=ZA=+—HIEERHK (@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2015
BRELBBEZERBTEREAENT ¢ not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:
rxEE
The group
“B-EHF —E-mE
2015 2014
Fr Tr
$000 $'000
[EHEY Contracted for 441 1,217
by R=ZZE—HF=A=+—0  RETTHE (b) At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease
REEHEEHRENZREHENRK payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
BEMT payable as follows:
rEE
The group
—2-1F —E-mF
2015 2014
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 127,566 117,527
—FREEFR After 1 year but within 5 years 128,615 164,997
HEBRF Over 5 years 6,450 6,634

262,631 289,158
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. &I (&)
(b) (&)
FEEREEHEERAE TN - ZS5H
HN—RAOLR/P—2RF > AATRLWE
ENERMAGRREY - BENREER
REFRAE  LRRTSHEE -

B ESURE 2 RIEEE NI AEEA
REXBHRETHENERE -—TED
EefE R & FRER 2RI o

26. EEE
RIEBE—HFE=ZA=+—H AQ2EMETE
EMfE AR ZRTREREBEATER -

EMRITRE 4 540,690,00078 (=& — [T
% 140,690,000T) - R=ZE—HF=A=+—
H>&F 1,836,000t (==& —[MF:
2,183,0007t) EB A °

25.

26.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) (continued)
The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to six years, with an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted annually to

reflect market rentals.

In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
above, the group has commitments to make rental
payments at a percentage of turnover for certain

leased properties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2015, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries’
banking facilities were secured by corporate guarantees

provided by the company.

The above banking facilities, amounting to $40,690,000
(2014: $40,690,000) were utilised to the extent of
$1,836,000 (2014: $2,183,000) at 31 March 2015.
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27. EXBBALRS 27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
MRZEMBMEREMIE T FIRE 2R RERR In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
o REBFTLTHERBEBRALZRS ! elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@ EBEEBARZRS (@) Transactions with related companies
—F-IF — ik
2015 2014
Fr FTr
$/000 $000
REMEZHESBWA Rental income from investment properties 526 645
ExEacHERX Rental expense for director’s quarters 996 996
SEEHZEERX Rental expense for a retail store 359 -
PR 75 & Wt A Service fee income 954 935
PR 75 & 58 =% Service fee expense 93 -
& & N B B R R Purchase of fashion apparels and
K Rt accessories from a joint venture 74 92
BEAR Purchase of cosmetic goods 573 =
5 B 1 PR B B2 B 86 T Sales of fashion apparels and accessories
BELHE to a joint venture 445 222
HEEB AR L 2HEWA c HEME Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,
REBWA - IREEBRX AR EE IR service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
WHHERSZIESEBE o companies were at terms mutually agreed by the

parties concerned.

b TEEEASHE (b) Key management personnel remuneration

TEEBAEME (BEME7AKREX
NFARRBAHTESZHIB)WT :

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

—F-1% —F-DmF

2015 2014

Fr T

$’000 $'000

EHESEF Short-term employee benefits 15,133 14,039

BERESRA Post-employment benefits 90 75
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28.

229);

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEERBARERS
R-ZE-HF=A=+—H EERREEEH
ZEES AR RBKZERTS HBSuper Result
Consultants Limited » —RAEBHER RS
EEa 1102 VAP AN KNG I3 o R N
i 2 B IRk o

BZE-—E-—A5=A=1+—HLEEEHE
B REMZIERT - HEEARZEZ
AR E

EEZEVERXTIZAY  EESHMASY
EEMZEEIRZEMGER 258Kk
FEERNBE—_E—AF=BA=1+—HILE
EMRER  BEMAREZEMHEHRRER - &%
EERUT 2B RIS EATRERAEES
g :

28.

29.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 March 2015, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the group to be
Super Result Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce

financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2015 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which

may be relevant to the group:
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29, BE-—E-—-HE=-A=+—-ALEECHE 29. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
MBS RERZBE] s FEEARREZ AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
TR S & (& EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

(continued)
RT5 A H
HZERRZ
EHE SRR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BREFEADE IR EAIARREFFHE - EEHM] —T-MEtA-R
Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions 1 July 2014
(BB BHREER) - FE-—FFE_F-_FAHZFENE —Z-NFELA—-A
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 1 July 2014
(BEEUBEHEER) —F——FE_F-=—FHAHZFERE —Z-NFEtA-A
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 1 July 2014
(BB BHREER) - FE-——F2_F-AFAH2FELE —2-X"¥-A—-H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016
(BRMBHRELEADF NSRBI RN UBRAEE Em 2B %] —2-~"¥-HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations 1 January 2016
(BBEMEA B IR R(BBEFER)EISRZBITA —E-XR"f-H-H

[(BETESZHERAHT L]
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods

of depreciation and amortisation 1 January 2016
(BB BREEEISRIKEEFENZ Wiz —E—+t&—A—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
(BEMBREEAFK24 T A ] —E2-N\F—-—A—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
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29. BE-E-AF=-A=t-HLFEER

B KW 2 BT - FEAIRRES
R (4

i

AESHIEFE RTS8 7] R °T E B R PR FE
REEENEE2HE 25 RAEBZER
BERMZEBIT AR EN R KT ARE
BeREXBERMBRRBREALE -

teoh  RIBHRFTES LHRA HEBAF
%RA(622F) FoMIIRE R BRI ZKERE
BERERAARRBE-E—RF=ZA=+—
FIEB B E o AEEB EE D BARG 2E
SHNEAERAEIMHRB 2GR BHRR 2
FHEE - £< AEEZERARTRZET

THRAEABERZIEVEREUBRRE
Bz 25 REE -
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29. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

(continued)

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the group’s results of operations and

financial position.

In addition, the disclosure requirements of Part 9,
“Accounts and Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) will be applicable for the first time to
the company’s financial year ending 31 March 2016 in
accordance with Rules Governing Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange. The group is in the process of making
an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in the
Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statement in the period of initial application of Part 9. So
far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily only affect the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Properties Held for Investment

it HE BERZ i

Address Existing use Lease term

a. 58

5

RIGEBE 145

LN

b T D55 A JE & BEHAE
a. Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road

North Point

Hong Kong Shop Short lease

b. 58

it A

2 R 3955

FERESE S

131265R E & 4D b
b. Part of Workshop No. 6, 13th Floor

Kodak House II

39 Healthy Street East

North Point

B
it

REHEE

Hong Kong Office Long lease

C. i

BB

HEEEE7R

B

26125013 BE hEEE
c. Part of 26th Floor

Hing Wai Centre

No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong Warehouse Medium-term lease
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R (VS SETE S

Properties Held for Investment

b Hik BRERZ G

Address Existing use Lease term
d. =8

LB

RABE

BMHT81-875%

SEIERE

BIEANBE rE hHEE

d. Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,
Island Industrial Building,
Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street

Tai Kok Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong Warehouse Medium-term lease
e. FERITARZEABIEBRE KEIEICKIDE WAE FHEEE
e. Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,

Tianfa Building,

Tian’san Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

f. FERNTRLEABIXEARAEH2EE

S5A5R5A6E ~ 61#26A5 ~ 6A6 * 6A7 R

6A8E LAR7E7A9 ~ 7A10 ~ 7A11 ~ 7A12 ~ 7A13 R

TAT4E BE RS
f. Flats 5A5 and 5A6 on 5th Floor,

Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor and

Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and 7A14 on

7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2,

Tianan Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC Quarter Medium-term lease



UTRBRETIMEFREERR - AEBEEC The following is a summary of the published results and assets
E-HFZA=+T-BLIAFERFEHEEE and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31
REEREBZHE - March 2015 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.
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Group Financial Summary

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ES RESULTS
BE-HA=+-HLEFE
Year ended 31 March
—2-hF ZB-AF ZB-=ZF ZB-Zf ZE-—-—-F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
T Fr Tr Fr Fr
$/000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000
E 3] Turnover 419,965 458,677 418,895 455,718 486,088
A Profit from operations 6,642 33,054 24,749 49,446 87,648
& B AR Finance costs M = (3) M (1)
EhEEDRER Share of loss of associate (188) (219) (28) - -
BiEEEREZ Share of profit/(loss) of
BAL (EE) joint venture 505 (1,019) (327) 255 (179)
THREEY Net valuation gains on land
RREME and buildings and
ALy investment properties 9,682 1,244 2,360 3,790 5,000
HEM X 2 Wi Gain on disposal of a property - - = 65,516 =
BR B A 2 A Profit before taxation 16,640 33,060 26,751 119,006 92,468
Frig® Income tax (5,309) (5,137) (6,722) (11,856) (13,910)
FREF Profit for the year 11,331 27,923 20,029 107,150 78,558
BRER Earnings per share
B-%N Basic $0.04 $0.10 $0.07 $0.38 $0.28
B8 Diluted $0.04 $0.10 $0.07 $0.38 $0.28
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EERARE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
=A=+-—-H
As at 31 March
“E-RfF “ZT-NF ZET-=F “ZT-_F ZT——F

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Tr Fr T T T

$/000 $'000 $/000 $/000 $'000

BEEE Fixed assets 522,076 466,123 449,365 402,467 368,726

HitpEE Other assets 18,888 21,885 15,145 12,915 50,096

EEFMBHEE Deferred tax assets 8,375 9,238 7,166 8,972 6,793

RBEEFE Net current assets 249,605 295,339 288,857 306,489 216,495
BEERRD Total assets less current

G EBE liabilities 798,944 792,585 760,533 730,843 642,110

FRBER Non-current liabilities (69,867) (63,797) (59,216) (50,242) (43,471)

729,077 728,788 701,317 680,601 598,639

(& Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,822

4] Reserves 726,197 725,908 698,437 677,721 595,817

729,077 728,788 701,317 680,601 598,639
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